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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on The Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China E-Information Technology Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEWILN 7

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$52,757,000 (2016: HK$46,277,000)
representing tuition fee revenue and sales of educational products.
Gross profit for the year under review was approximately
HK$22,603,000 (2016: HK$19,737,000), representing a gross
profit margin of 42.8% for the year under review.

During the year, cost of goods sold and services provided
amounted to appr oximately HK$30,154,000 (2016:
HK$26,540,000) representing the overheads incurred in the
distance learning courses.

Other income for the year under review was approximately
HK$9,040,000 (2016: HK$138,000) representing an interest
income of approximately HK$203,000 (2016: HK$53,000), a
sundry income of approximately HK$200,000 (2016: HK$85,000),
exchange gain of approximately HK$5,470,000 (2016: Nil),
reverse impairment loss on other receivable of approximately
HK$2,975,000 (2016: Nil) and net realised gain on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$192,000
(2016: Nil).

Administrative expenses for the year under review were
approximately HK$65,335,000 (2016: HK$42,955,000), of which
staff related costs were approximately HK$45,745,000 (2016:
HK$35,655,000). Legal and professional fees were approximately
HK$24,877,000 (2016: HK$10,258,000) representing the costs
of conducting due diligences and obtaining financial advices with
ongoing projects.
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Other expenses for the year under review were approximately
HK$3,079,000 (2016: HK$21,740,000), representing, a net unre-
alised losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately HK$259,000 (2016: 8,149,000), impairment loss
on asset held for sale of approximately HK$1,640,000 (2016: Nil)
and fair value change of contingent consideration received of ap-
proximately HK$1,180,000 (2016: Nil). In 2016, a net realised loss
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of approxi-
mately HK$10,203,000 and loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$3,388,000.

Finance costs during the year were approximately HK$6,370,000
(2016: HK$569,000).

Capital structure, liquidity and financial
resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly by cash
revenue generated internally from operating activities and additional
funds from exercise of share options. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group has current assets of approximately HK$150,875,000
(2016: HK$144,130,000), including bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$20,767,000 (2016: HK$51,128,000). Total
non-current assets of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$110,491,000 (2016: HK$51,401,000), representing property,
plant and equipment, investment in an associate and contingent
consideration receivable. Total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$261,366,000 (2016: HK$195,531,000) as at 31
December 2017.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowing. Total current liabilities of the Group
were approximately HK$28,330,000 (2016: HK$41,956,000),
which mainly comprised trade and other payables. Total
liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$58,641,000
(2016: HK$41,956,000). As at 31 December 2017, the Group
had net assets of approximately HK$202,725,000 (2016:
HK$153,575,000).

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio of the Group, as expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, was approximately 0.22 as at 31
December 2017 (2016: 0.29).

Share Capital

As at 1 January 2017, the authorised share capital of the Company
was HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.10 each and the issued share capital of the Company was
approximately HK$330,498,000 divided into 3,304,979,386 shares
of HK$0.10 each.

During the year, 260,917,647 shares were issued upon exercise of
shares options and Conversion of Convertible note.

As at 31 December 2017, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 50,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.10 each and the issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$356,590,000 divided into
3,565,897,033 shares of HK$0.10 each.

Convertible Notes 2011

The Group had reached several agreements with the holders of
the Convertible Notes 2008 which became mature on 28 February
2011, and issued a promissory note for approximately HK$50
million for a settlement. In order to be able to raise sufficient
fund for the settlement, the Group issued two tranches of
convertible notes (“Convertible Notes 2011 A”) on 9 May 2011 and
(“Convertible Notes 2011 B”) on 11 May 2011.
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The aggregate principal of Convertible Notes 2011 A amounted to
HK$89,999,934, bearing an interest of 1% per annum, maturing
in 36 months from the date of issue, and convertible into ordinary
shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, subject to
adjustments.

The aggregate principal of Convertible Notes 2011 B amounted to
HK$36,200,000, bearing an interest of 1% per annum, maturing
in 6 months from the date of issue, and convertible into ordinary
shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, subject to
adjustments. On 11 November 2011, the maturity date was
successfully postponed for another 6 months to 11 May 2012.
Upon maturity, the principal amount together with the interests due
were fully settled by a promissory note.

On 9 May 2014, the Company and the Subscribers entered into
the Subscription Agreements pursuant to which the Subscribers
have agreed to subscribe for, and the Company has agreed to
issue, the Convertible Notes (CN2016-1 to CN2016-5) in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$42,399,932, such that the
subscription moneys payable in connection with the Subscription
of such Convertible Notes would be set-off against the moneys
payable by the Company for redeeming the CN2011A in
accordance with the Payment Arrangement Deed and against
the Indebtedness owing by the Company to the Existing P-note
Holders at Completion.

The Convertible Notes 2011 A were fully set-off by the issuance
of Convertible Notes (CN2016-3, CN2016-4 and CN2016-5) on 6
June 2014.

On 12 June 2014, the conversion rights attaching to the CN2016-
1, CN2016-2 and CN2016-3 have been exercised in full and
hence 231,076,922 shares have been issued.

On 13 June 2014, the conversion rights attaching to the
CN2016-4 and CN2016-5 have been exercised in full and hence
95,076,399 shares have been issued. Hence, Convertible Notes
2016 (CN2016-1, CN2016-2, CN2016-3, CN2016-4 and
CN2016-5) were fully converted.
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On 21 July 2011, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
with a group of independent subscribers for the issuance of
some convertible notes in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$42,000,000, bearing an interest rate of 3% per annum,
maturing in 12 months from the date of issue, and convertible into
ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, subject
to adjustments. Subsequently, the Group issued two tranches
of convertible notes (“Convertible Notes 2011 C”) on 25 August
2011 for the principal amount of HK$19,500,000 and (“Convertible
Notes 2011 D”) on 14 September 2011 for the principal amount of
HK$22,500,000. Of which, tranche C was fully converted in 2011.
On 10 September 2012, the maturity date of the tranche D was
postponed foranother 6 months to 7 March 2013. On 7 March
2013, the maturity date of the tranche D was further postponed
for 12 months to 6 March 2014. As at 1 January 2014, the
outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Notes 2011 D was
HK$12,800,000.

On 6 March 2014, the Company has redeemed one of
the Convertible Notes 2011 D with the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 in accordance with notice from the holder. The
Company is contacting the holder of the Convertible Notes 2011
D with the principal amount of HK$2,800,000 in order to settle the
convertible notes. As at 31 December 2016, the Company has not
received any reply or notice from the holder and the Company has
the funds available for settlement.

Convertible Notes 2018

On 18 December 2015 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into the Subscription Agreement with Ms. Li Jing, pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, the Company has agreed to issue, and
Ms. Li Jing has agreed to subscribe for the Convertible Notes
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 for a total
consideration of HK$10,000,000, all of which shall be setoff in
full against the equivalent amount of indebtedness owning by the
Company to Ms. Li Jing under EICN at the Completion.

Completion of the issue of the Convertible Notes 2018 (CN2018) in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 took place on
13 January 2016.
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As at 30 September 2016, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of CN2018 was HK$10,000,000. The exercise in full of the
vested conversion rights would result in the issue and allotment of
28,571,428 new shares of the Company.

On 8 June 2017, the Company has fully redeemed the CN 2018
with the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 in accordance with
notice from the holder.

Convertible Notes 2020

On 11 October 2016 and 24 October 2016, the Company
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement and Supplemental
Agreement with the Vendor in relation to the acquisition of 49%
equity interest in Beijing Youli Lianxu Technology Company Limited.

Completion of the issue of the Convertible Notes 2020 (CN2020)
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$91,581,000 have been
issued, of which HK$54,215,952 are issued to the company
nominated by Mr. Wang Peng and HK$37,365,048 are issued to
the company nominated by Mr. Ma Liejun took place on 25 April
2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of CN2020 was HK$54,948,600. The exercise in full of the
vested conversion rights would result in the issue and allotment of
230,876,471 new shares of the Company.

Foreign exchange exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Although
the exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi
has been moderately changing, it remains relatively stable. As
the expenditure in PRC was covered by the sales in PRC, the
management considers that the Group has no significant foreign
exchange exposures. Foreign exchange risk arising from the
normal course of operations is considered as minimal. As at 31
December 2017, the Group has no foreign currency borrowings
and has not used any financial instrument for hedging the foreign
exchange risk.
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Significant investments and material
acquisition

On 20 March 2017 the Company and Zhong He Xin Yuan
Technology Company Limited* fr iz ¥ EEH AR A & (‘ZHXY”)
entered into a strategic cooperation agreement. ZHXY is a
company incorporated with limited liability in the People’s Republic
of China and is a member of the China Nuclear Industry Group* #
Bz T ¥ £E. Zhong He Xin Yuan owns the core technologies in
the application of nuclear technologies, including but not limited to
the design and setting of the standards of irradiation station, and in
the manufacturing and application of irradiation accelerators. The
reason for the signing of the Strategic Cooperation Agreement and
the cooperation with Zhong He Xin Yuan will enable the Company
to venture into in the business of irradiation. Details of which were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 20 March
2017.

On 19 June 2017, China Nuclear Resources Group Co., Ltd.
(b #% & R £ B A R 2 7)), North Sheng Da (Beijing) Technical
Trading Co., Ltd. (b5 &% ZE L 7)EHE B IR A &), Beiing Hua Tuo
Education Technology Company Limited (1t RERZ B B A
BR 7~ A]) (@ wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), and Beijing
Yuan Yin Due Diligence and Consulting Co., Ltd. (3t ;R T &= & i
LB PR A R]) entered into a cooperation agreement in relation to
the joint investment in and the establishment of Nuclear Inspection
Electron Beam Technology Co., Ltd. (i & & + R £ i1 & B &
7]). Details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 19 June 2017.

On 7 August 2017, Nuclear Inspection Electron Beam Technology
Co., Ltd., a company jointly invested and established by China
Nuclear Resources Group Co., Ltd., North Sheng Da (Beijing)
Technical Trading Co., Ltd., Beijing Yuan Yin Due Diligence and
Consulting Co., Ltd. and Beijing Hua Tuo Education Technology
Company Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
entered into the Cooperation Agreement in relation to an irradiation
(or electron beam) quarantine treatment technology application
project (the “Cooperation Project”) with Chinese Society of
Inspection and Quarantine and Tianjin Port Inspection and Analysis
Development Services Co., Ltd.. Details of which were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 8 August 2017.
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On 9 May 2017, the Company entered into a Memorandum of
Cooperation with Ms. Zhang Manlin, being holder of Beijing Huada
Kanghong Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (3t R & B oA £ MR AR
& 2 7)) (the “Target Company I”) as to 30%, Mr. Yao Xianguo,
being holder of the Target Company | as to 30%, and Mr. Zhujiang,
being holder of the Target Company | as to 40%, (collectively
hold in aggregate 100% equity interest of the Target Company
), in relation to the possible transfer of not less than 65% of the
equity interest of the Target Company | to the Company and other
cooperation projects. The Target Company | is a limited company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China. It is principally
engaged in the business of prepackaged food wholesale and
biotechnology development. The consideration has not yet been
determined but shall be determined with reference to the value
of the Target Company | to be assessed by an independent
professional valuer to be appointed by the Parties and may be
satisfied by the Company’s issue of convertible notes, and the
price for issuing such Shares and the conversion price of such
convertible notes shall not lower than HK$0.225 per Share. The
reason for the possible transfer was for the Company to develop
the health food market. Details of which were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 9 May 2017.

Under the terms of the agreement dated 29 December 2016
for the Company’s acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Maxi Trick Investment Limited and all indebtedness owing by
Maxi Trick Investment Limited to Joyful Area Worldwide Limited
(the “MT Agreement”), if any of the conditions precedent to
completion of the MT Agreement (the “Conditions”) have not
been fulfiled or waived on the day falling 6 months after the date
of the MT Agreement (the “Long Stop Date”), the MT Agreement
will be terminated forthwith and the parties to the MT Agreement
shall not have any claim against each other, save and except any
antecedent breaches.

Since there were Conditions which had not been fulfiled or waived
on 29 June 2017, being the Long Stop Date, the MT Agreement
had been terminated forthwith.

R-ZZE—tFRAANE ARBIRBEEERILRE
EFRLVEYMRRBEREEAR( BEARID DR
BE%MBIE T ARBI N EMAFRA RREML L
(BRAFIZ30%KEREEAN) LBELLE(BRQ
AIZ30% B A ) KAITEE(BIEARIZ40%
BrEHRA A A REAEBREABIZ100%8E)RE
R - BRARIENHEARLMBE ML
MABERAR - ZAREBRERBEBREERRM  £Y)
RTFAREERR - BERARETE MR ERRES
RENBLEXGEMZRTENTENHERER
ERKRBZEZARDRMGEETERE - HEARALR
ABITARBRERN AN URBEITZERD D
BiE K% E r R RBENERER NMER S20.225
AL BEERZIBEA/ARARMABRIERAD
5 - BRFHBRERARRBMA-_T—tFAAN

EPA/N=K

BERRA T —R"EFT-AZTNLABHELAA
I BEMaxi Trick Investment Limited® & &B & 3 17 A%
K KMaxi Trick Investment Limited%% /X Joyful Area
Worldwide Limited®) it (& 7% 2 17 3 ([ MTH# 3% 1) #9
&R - AN FERCMT 19 55 &9 AR A0 SE R MG (T &4 1) R R
MT % B Hif& w6 R A < B ([ &g et B 21 ) AER
TR - MTI R A BN A% I - MTIEERT 87 5
M A REEMRE  BRELIERERI

HRBE-ZT—tFA XA TARAAIKREE LA
HD) B G AR S E R R - MTIHEE BN AR L

12  CHINAE-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. - HE##&{E SN EEERA



The Directors consider that the termination of the MT Acquisition
will not have any material adverse effect on the financial position or
the business operation of the Group.

Details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 20 July 2017.

On 25 July 2017, the Company entered into the Placing
Agreement with each of the Placees respectively, pursuant to
which, the Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the
Placees conditionally agreed to subscribe for, an aggregate of
660,000,000 Warrants at the Issue Price of HK$0.03 per Warrant.
Each Warrant carries the right to subscribe for one Warrant Share
at the Subscription Price of HK$0.40 per Warrant Share during
the Subscription Period. Details of which were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 July 2017.

As at 25 September 2017, the Condition to Completion of the
Warrant Placing had not been fulfilled. As a result, all the Placing
Agreements were terminated on 25 September 2017.

The Board considers that the termination of the Placing
Agreements has no material adverse impact on the existing
business and/or the financial position of the Group, and will explore
other fund-raising methods for the Group, such as placing of
shares or convertible notes.

Details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 26 September 2017.

On 22 September 2017, the Company and the Vendor of
Shag Mei International Food Limited entered into a termination
agreement to terminate the Agreement with immediate effect. As a
result, the Agreement was terminated on 22 September 2017

The Directors believe that the termination of the Agreement will
not have any material adverse effect on the operation and financial
position of the Group.

Details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 25 September 2017.
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Significant investments

On 11 October 2016 and 24 October 2016, the Company
entered into the Sale and Purchase Agreement and Supplemental
Agreement with the Vendor in relation to the acquisition of 49%
equity interest in Beijing Youli Lianxu Technology Company Limited.

For detailed information regarding the transaction of Beijing
Youli Lianxu Technology Company Limited, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 11 October 2016 and 24
October 2016.

On 25 April 2017, the Company was completed with the terms
and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement and
Supplemental Agreement.

For detailed information regarding the completion of transaction,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25 April
2017.

Contingent liabilities and charges on the
Group’s assets

There were no significant contingent liabilities or charges on the
Group’s assets as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of an internet
platform for the facilitation of education program in Chinese
medicine and other advisory and training programs.
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On 1 July 2010, the Joint Construction of Network Education
College of Beijing University of Chinese Medicine Agreement (3£
BibRTBERNBHERHE 2R 1% ZEE) (‘Joint Construction
Agreement”) entered into between Beijing University of Chinese
Medicine (1t * F & % X £) and Hunan IIN Medical Network
Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“Hunan IIN Medical”), a
subsidiary of [IN Medical (BVI), was successfully renewed. In
accordance with the Joint Construction Agreement, Hunan [IN
Medical’s entitlement to share 60% of the profits of Distance
Education College of Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (1t
RO ER B oK 2R 1R 2 B 2 Bx) (“Distance Education College”) is
reduced to 51% profit-sharing percentage during the year 2010
while all other terms and conditions thereunder are not less
favourable than those under the Joint Construction Agreement.
This e-learning business remained the core business of the Group
in 2017.

On 14 April 2015, Hunan IIN Medical, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a supplemental agreement (the
“Agreement”) with the Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (it
R B K £ (‘BUCM”) for amending the agreement dated 29th
June 2010 signed between them. Pursuant to the Agreement,
Hunan IIN Medical will pass its daily business management and
administrative management in respect of the Distance Education
College of the Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (1t 72 25 %
NESRFEHE %) (the”Distance Education College”) to BUCM.
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This arrangement is primarily made for the purpose of consolidating
the daily business management and administrative management of
the Distance Education College, so as to reduce operating costs
and increase revenue, fully leverage the advantages of both parties
in their respective areas, and lay a solid foundation for overall
expansion in the future.

The Company changed the English name of the Company
from “China E-Learning Group Limited” to “China E-Information
Technology Group Limited”, and changed the dual foreign name in
Chinese of the Company from “f Bl4848 # B £ E AR A7) to “
BB ESRRERARAR.

On 12 May 2017, the special resolution passed at the EGM in
relation Company change name.

For detailed information regarding the change of Company
name and the result of special resolution, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 April 2017 and 12 May
2017.

On 26 January 2018, the Placing Agreement was entered into
between the Company and the Placing Agent, pursuant to
which the Company has appointed the Placing Agent to procure
altogether not less than six Placees, on a best effort basis, for
subscribing up to an aggregate of 330,000,000 Placing Shares at
HK$0.35 per Placing Share. Details of which were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 January 2018.
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On 9 February 2018, the Company and the Placing Agent entered
into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”)
for amending the terms of the Placing Agreement, pursuant to
which the deadline for fulfilment of the conditions to completion
of the Placing (the “Long Stop Date”) has been postponed from
9 February 2018 to 23 February 2018. Details of which were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9 February
2018.

All the conditions to completion of the Placing have been fulfilled
and the completion of the Placing took place on 27 February
2018. Details of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 27 February 2018.

On 23 March, 2018, the group entered into an agreement
pursuant to which the seller Million Forever Limited agreed to sell
the 45% shares of Business Harbour Limited to the original seller
Happy Leisure Corp. which offered to repurchase the shares at
a consideration of HK$38 million satisfied by cash. Directors of
the Company regarded this as an adjustment event according
to HKAS 10 and reclassified the investment in associate as
investment held for sale. According to HKFRS 5, asset held for
sale shall be measured at the lower of its carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Since the sales proceeds was HK$ 38
million which was the fair value and costs to sell are considered
to be insignificant, an impairment loss of HK$ 11.64 million was
provided accordingly. However, since the original seller waived
the contingent consideration of HK$ 10 million, a gain of waiver of
such payable of HK$ 10 million is also recognised. The net effect
of HK$ 1,640,000 was included in other losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Employee Information

For the year under review, the total staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$45,745,000 (2016: HK$35,655,000),
representing an increase of approximately HK$10,090,000 over
the previous year.
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The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees were kept at
a market level and employees were rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system, which is reviewed annually. Staff benefits
include contribution to the mandatory provident fund and share
options. Share options were granted to employees of the Group in
the current year, whereby comparative details are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

PROSPECTS

The Group’s existing e-learning business will remain the core
business and main cash generator in the near future. This business
is expected to grow in a rather stable manner.

Furthermore, the Group will implement certain cost-effective
measures to streamline the operation so as to enhance the
profitability and value of this e-learning business. The Company
will continue to look for opportunities for our existing business,
particularly in developing both vertically and horizontally within the
Group’s existing medical education platform, expanding further into
our service network, increase the shareholders’ value and reduce
business risk.

In addition, the Company will continue to look for other attractive
investments in the PRC and locally in an attempt to diversify into
different business areas to reduce the reliance upon existing
e-learning business and strengthen the positive cash flow and
earnings for the Group in the long run.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAERBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yuan Wei (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2013 and
further appointed as the authorised representative and compliance
officer of the Company on 14 February 2014; Mr. Yuan holds
an associate degree in Heilongjiang Academy of Finance and
Management for Comrades (2 #2,T & B & & 28 & 12 £ %), He
joined the Beijing Commercial Bank (1t R 75 $£77) in 1993 and
worked for 12 years. He left the position of manager at the credit
department of the Beijing Commercial Bank in 2005. Mr. Yuan
then engaged in the finance-related business and has gained 21
years of experience in the financial and banking sector. Mr. Yuan
is mainly responsible for the strategy formulation of the Company.
Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Yuan did not hold any directorships
in any listed public company in the last three years.

Ms. Zhang Jianxin (“Ms. Zhang”), aged 50, was appointed as
an executive Director on 13 July 2016.

Ms. Zhang Jianxin, graduated from the Central Radio and
Television University in accounting in 2003, and obtained the
Senior International Finance Manager Qualification Certificate
from International Financial Management Association and China
Association of Chief Financial Officers in 2008. From July 2007
to Aug 2013, Ms. Zhang was the financial controller of Beijing
Hua Tuo Education Technology Company Limited, a wholly own
subsidiary of the Company. Since September 2013, Ms. Zhang
has been the director of Hunan IIN Medical Network Technology
Development Company Limited* (437 B 57 82 224848 RHL B 5 TR
/2 a)), a wholly own subsidiary of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, Ms. Zhang does not hold any position with the Company
and its subsidiaries and she does not hold any directorship in
other listed companies nor has any other major appointment or
qualification in the last three years.
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Mr. Zheng Zhijing (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 55, was appointed as
executive director of the Company on 16 May 2017.

Mr. Zheng obtained Economics Law degree from Beijing College
Finance and Commerce (It REA & £p5). Mr. Zheng has extensive
experience in the management field. Mr. Zheng does not hold any
position with the Company and its subsidiaries and he does not
hold any directorship in other listed companies nor has any other
major appointment or qualification in the last three years.

Ms. Lin Yan (“Ms. Lin”), aged 35, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 16 May 2017.

Ms. Lin graduated from Finance and Accounting of Fujian Normal
University ({8 #Z2AM &0 A 22). Ms. Lin has extensive experience in the
finance, accounting and management field. Ms. Lin does not hold
any position with the Company and its subsidiaries and she does
not hold any directorship in other listed companies nor has any
other major appointment or qualification in the last three years.

Ms. Wong Hiu Pui (“Ms. Wong”), aged 29, was appointed as
executive director of the Company on 31 August 2017.

Ms. Wong obtained a Master of Corporate Communication degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Bachelor of
Advertising degree from Renmin University of China. Ms. Wong
has been working in the Corporate Banking Division of China
Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited since September
2014. Prior to that, she worked in financial institutions, assisting
in human resources duties and providing financial services and
solutions to clients. Ms. Wong has not held directorships in the last
three years in public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Qunsheng (“Mr. Li”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee, member of the nomination committee and member
of the remuneration committee of the Company on 7 February
2014. Mr. Li was graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics in China in 1982 and is currently a certified public
accountant in China. From 1982 to 1993, Mr. Li served in the
Ministry of Finance, Investment Department of the National Audit
Office and the China Audit Administration. In 1993, he served as
vice president of BOT investment & Development Corporation and
was in charge of the financial affairs of the company as well as the
management of its subsidiaries. He was also involved in planning
the investments into high-grade highways and M&A activities.
Mr. Li left office in 1997, and then joined Golden Sino (China
Infrastructure) Development Holdings Limited as general manager,
responsible for project planning, negotiations, project construction
management, capital operation etc. In 1999, Mr. Li joined
Shenzhen Xiansheng Technology Development Co., Ltd. as chief
executive officer, responsible for daily operation and management
of the company and capital operation of the company. Mr. Li
joined Ever Crown International (HK) Limited in 2002 upon its
invitation and served as chief executive officer. After that, Mr. Li
joined Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co., Ltd. in 2009 as
managing director, and has been responsible for managing the
Guangzhou City Nansha Port Expressway project since then.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAERBRE

On 21 February 2014, Mr. Li has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Superb Summit International
Group Limited (stock code: 1228), whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Li did not hold any other position
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor did he hold any
directorship or any other major appointment or qualification in
other listed companies in the last three years.

Mr. Wang Xinsheng (“Mr. Wang”), aged 49, was appointed
as independent non-executive director of the Company on 4
December 2017.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree from the School of
Finance of Renmin University of China, majoring in finance and
a bachelor’s degree from the Physics Department of Northeast
Normal University, majoring in radio electronics. Mr. Wang has
been the general manager of Beijing Taiji Tonggong Electronic
Technology Co., Ltd. (It 3 A & 38 T & F #: 1l7 /& PR A 7)) since
May 2015. Prior to that, he has been engaged in the business
of corporate listing and mergers and acquisitions for 24 years
since 1993, responsible for investment value analysis, joint-stock
company listing counselling; preparation of proposals for mergers
and acquisitions, ownership reform, reorganisation, stripping
and establishment as well as the relevant implementation; the
preparation of and negotiation for the relevant contracts; corporate
consolidation and counselling following mergers and acquisitions;
simulated financial reporting, profit forecast reporting; and control
and analysis of costs and expenses. He was involved in the listing
and mergers and acquisitions of Sinopec (F £ 1b), Panjiang
Refined Coal (85T f%{5), Qinghai Huading (F /8% £) and Humon
Smelting (f8 F A& {»). He has experience in both research and
development at university research institutions and corporate
management, and is a typical inter-disciplinary talent with expertise
in both basic engineering and finance management. Mr. Wang has
not held directorships in the last three years in public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.
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Ms. Lu Xiaowei (“Ms. Lu”), aged 48, was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company on 11
December 2017.

Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor of medicine degree from Harbin
Medical University, majoring in nursing. Ms. Lu has been the head
of the teaching material department and the home care department
of Beijing Baocare Yangyi Technology Co., Ltd. (it RE ESE R}
F AR A F]) since April 2013. Prior to that, she has been engaged
in clinical nursing for nearly 30 years since 1987 and has extensive
experience in clinical medicine and clinical nursing. She had acted
as a head nurse for 13 years and has strong management skills.
She obtained the National Advanced Nutritionist qualification
in September 2010. During the work at Beijing Baocare Yangyi
Technology Co., Ltd., she, together with colleagues, complied
elderly care teaching materials and an ISO 9001 quality certification
manual for the quality management of elderly care institutions,
and developed and established a large professional elderly care
platform with independent intellectual property rights — “BAOCARE
Elderly Care System”. She was also involved in an elderly self-care
ability rating assessment organised by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the PRC. Ms. Lu has not held directorships in the last three
years in public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
E-Information Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) presents
herewith the annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 167.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend in
respect of the reporting year (2016: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results of
the Group for each of the five years ended 31 December 2017
prepared on the basis set out in the note below:

TEEGEEMREEERAR(ARANES
(Ex)e((EFg hERREARAREMELR
AlAEENDBEE_Z—+F+-A=+—HIF
B2 FEREMEERREMB®RE -

FEXR

ARRZ EBEBRIREEZER  ARRMBARZE
BEBHBHNRE M ERAMEST

FERKRE

AEFHE-_E—+F+_A=+—RIEE%
BERAEERZB 2SR E R ES8E167 B 2 4R
BYEHRE -

EETREREE DR EAABRE(ZF
% 3)e

MBERBE

NTRETXWEMBEERE 2 AEEEE
—tF+ A=+ B I AEFERFREZELE
EEME

Foll

=
AN
=

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

—E—tF “E-RF ZE-hE ZE—mE —E-=F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TAT TAT THET THEL

Revenue from continuing operations 7K B EEEL £ 7 A 52,757 46,277 45,701 47,474 47,066
Loss before tax from continuing 7K BB

operations BHAIEE 66,397 140,851 33,187 47 417 22,551

Loss from discontinued operations  JREE K IHELE 5 7 BB - - - - 63,531

Loss after tax BEiEER 66,397 140,851 33,187 47 417 86,082

Total assets BERE 261,366 195,531 227,191 366,338 134,883

Total liabilities aEed 58,641 41,956 49,483 54,001 228,731
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements of property, plant and equipment are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options during
the year are set out in notes 25 and 33 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible notes during
the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 62 and note 26 to the consolidated
financial statement respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not have any reserve
available for cash distribution (2016: Nil). In accordance with
the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company’s share premium account is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The share
premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Group and the Company did not have any management
services contract for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not have any charitable donations
(2016: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

BT IEE

AABEHERAXASHE LA EGHES
RIBRE I REARBERLPIMBRBRREE
AL

EHANTERE

REE_Z—+tF+_A=+—HILEBEAFERN &
NA BRI ARFRE -

BEEEY
BE-F—tFR-F-AFT-A=T—ALF
€ ARERARABEFTEDELREAL -

TEFEFRMAES

AEBZEREP RHEERFAMGHEE RKRBE
BT

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Revenue ON
— The largest customer — BAEP n/a T3 A n/a 1@ A
— Five largest customers — AREF n/a i A n/a i@ A
Cost of goods sold HEEm
and services provided R = A
— The largest services provider — SARIEHER 25% 21%
— Five largest services providers — AARARGHIER 52% 50%

Students are our major customers. It is therefore not applicable to
provide the largest and the five largest customers’ percentages on
our revenue income.

BEREMNEETF A NMNERAREREAKRR
REPRASEWAMIEBEDLL
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None of the Directors, their associates or shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or
service providers noted above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Wei

Ms. Zhang Jianxin

Mr. Wang Weihua (resigned on 31 August 2017)
Mr. Zheng Zhijing (appointed on 16 May 2017)
Ms. Lin Yan (appointed on 16 May 2017)

Ms. Wong Hiu Pui (appointed on 31 August 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Qunsheng

Dr. Huang Chung Hsing (resigned on 11 December 2017)
Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy (resigned on 4 December 2017)

Mr. Wang Xinsheng (appointed on 4 December 2017)
Ms. Lu Xiaowei (appointed on 11 December 2017)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers that
all independent non-executive directors are independent to the
Group in accordance with the terms of the guidelines as set out in
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Zheng Zhijing, Ms. Lin Yan, Ms. Wong Hiu Pui, Mr.
Wang Xinsheng and Ms. Lu Xiaowei and Mr. Yuan Wei. will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

BEE REZHEATIRRBESAAFALN
NASWIA L2 AR Ll B R Sk AR L
R EA (E i -

S

ARBRMBFEARBEERAREAHZESTNOT ¢

HITES

RERE

SREFT L
ERERAEMR-_Z—LFN\A=T—HEH)
BEREER-_FT—LFAATNBLEE)
ML+ (R _FE—+tFRA+/NHLE)
FHRAZLE(R_T—tFN\A=T—HLE)

BAFHITES

FHRBREE
BERAEBT(WZT—tF+-A+—HET)
MLt (RZE—+F+ =AM AHT)
FHEEERZT—tF+ANA LF)
EEBZT(RZT—+tF+=-A+—8LME)

ARRBEWE| BB IFRNTE FIRRGEM LR A
SE5. 00 BLEL B M M IR 2 FERER LK - AR AR
1EGEM LT RIS 5.00fFRFTENIE 51 R 2 IR 28878
VIFMITEEI BN ANEE

RIBARRABEIZMAEST I SERTLE MY
Lt EFRBRE EHASRL EBRBIEIARE
FEBRARFRERRBFAS LRE AFAE
R AR BRI

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017 27



Report of the Directors

ESERE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Yuan Wei, the executive director, has entered into service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. This service
contract may be terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice to the other party.

Ms. Zhang Jianxin, the executive director, has entered into service
contract with the Company for a term of three years. This seivice
contract may be terminated by either parties giving not less than
three month’s notice to the other party.

Mr. Li Qunsheng, the independent non-executive director, has
entered into service contract with the Company for a term of two
years. This service contract may be terminated by either parties
giving not less than three months’ notice to the other party.

Mr. Wang Xinsheng, the independent non-executive director, has
not been appointed for a fixed term of service.

Ms. Lu Xiaowei, the independent non-executive director, has not
been appointed for a fixed term of service.

Mr. Zheng Zhijing, the executive director, has not been appointed
for a fixed term of service.

Ms Lin Yan, the executive director, has not been appointed for a
fixed term of service.

Ms. Wong Hiu Pui, the executive director, has not been appointed
for a fixed term of service.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

EERBEN
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Report of the Board of the Directors prepared by the Directors
is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including its Directors,
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits include insurance and medical cover
as well as share option scheme. Details of share option scheme
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The determination of remuneration of the Directors of the
Company had taken into consideration of their expertise and job
specifications.
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Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted in the
Annual General Meeting of the Company on 23 May 2011. On 17
May 2017 the Company granted 330,000,000 share options (the
“Options”) to individuals (the “Grantees”) under the Company’s
share option scheme adopted on 23 May 2011. Details of share
option scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required
(a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

BT E
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Long positions

3p )

Number of shares or underlying shares held

RO RNARER G HE
Percentage of
Name of Directors Ordinary Share issued share
and Chief Executive Capacity shares options Total capital
HERIT
ESRTETBRAEHSA 514 EER MR et & N=
Yuan Wei (Executive Director) Beneficial owner - 33,000,000 33,000,000 0.93%
RE@ITES) EnBA
Zhang Jianxin (Executive Director) Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.28%
SREFT(FITESE) EnBA
Zheng Zhijing (Executive Director) Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.28%
EER(FITES) EnBA
Wong Hiu Pui (Executive Director) Beneficial owner 120,000 - 120,000 0.003%
TR (FITES) EnBA
Li Qunsheng (Independent Beneficial owner - 3,000,000 3,000,000 0.08%
Non-executiveDirector)
FPRROBUIFNITESE) EnEEA
Lu Xiaowei (Independent Non- Beneficial owner 1,360,000 - 1,360,000 0.04%
executive Director)
EEEE OB IENITES) EREBA
Wang Xinsheng (Independent Beneficial owner 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 0.08%
Non-executive Director)
TR E(BENITES) EnBA
Wang Hui (Chief Executive Officer) Beneficial owner 1,000,000 38,377,306 39,377,306 1.10%

FRGETHRAER)

BEamlAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
other Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short position in shares, debentures or underlying shares of the
Company and its associated corporations which was required (a)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests in shares and share options” above and
“Share option scheme” in note 34, at no time during the year was
the Group, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in the Group or any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSABLE UNDER
THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as known to any Directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in shares or underlying shares
of the Company

RARXTRGHEBERED 2FR

Name of shareholder Capacity Number of shares Percentage of

or underlying issued share

shares held capital

RER A g4 RO HE 8T

HERHEE REBDLH

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited (note 1)  Investment manager 320,384,000 8.98%

(B5E1) BB

Liu Yang (note 2) Interest of a controlled corporation 320,384,000 8.98%
2 g (PfEE2) MEEER 2

Atlantis Investment Management Investment manager 320,384,000 8.98%

(Hong Kong) Limited (note 1)

(Bf

Notes:

BRI
1)

Pursuant to the disclosure of interests notices filed by each of Ms.
Liu Yang and Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited, Atlantis Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited (“Atlantis (Hong Kong)”) and
Atlantis Investment Management (Ireland) Limited (“Atlantis (Ireland)”)
were disclosed as having interest in 320,384,000 shares and
170,384,000 shares of the Company respectively. Atlantis (Hong
Kong) and Atlantis (Ireland) are indirect wholly-owned and direct
wholly-owned by Ms. Liu Yang and Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited
respectively. Therefore, Ms. Liu Yang and Atlantis Capital Holdings
Limited are deemed to be interested in the shares held by Atlantis
(Hong Kong) and Atlantis (Ireland).

Pursuant to the disclosure of interests notices filed by Riverwood
Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd, Riverwood Asset Management
(Cayman) Ltd was disclosed as having interest in 150,000,000
shares of the Company and was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ms.
Liu Yang. Therefore, Ms. Liu Yang is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd.

GG

1.

18 # 2| R % + K Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited
Atlantis Investment Management (Hong Kong)
Limited ([ Atlantis (Hong Kong)]) & Atlantis Investment
Management (Ireland) Limited([ Atlantis (Ireland)])
EEMRXEGHEBBEN DN BEERNARLF
320,384,000% 5% 170,384,0008% A% 1) #E A %
Atlantis (Hong Kong) and Atlantis (Ireland)? 51l f5 2 5
%24 K Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited®@Z 2 &4
LkE#E2ERE - 2| R+ RAtantis Capital#f 7 4
RAtlantis (Hong Kong) & Atlantis (Ireland)Ffr#3 B% 17
mAE R -

1R #ERiverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Ltd
Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) LtdFf $& 22
7 o % BR 3 AN - % BE 7 AN A §1150,000,0008% A% 17
BERELAZRZL2EREWEB AR ALt
2| & 4 + %8 B M Riverwood Asset Management
(Cayman) Ltd.Fr A% (5 5 B A% ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review, neither the Directors nor the
substantial shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates had any interest in business that competes, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
audited by McMillan Woods SG CPA Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-
appointment of McMillan Woods SG CPA Limited as the auditors
of the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On Behalf of the Board

Yuan Wei
Executive Director

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance and believes that good corporate
governance can (i) enhance management effectiveness and
efficiency; (i) increase the transparency of the Company; (iii)
enhance risk management and internal control of the Company
and (iv) safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange which sets out the principles of good corporate
governance, the provisions of the Code (the “Code Provisions”)
and the recommended best practices, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the Code Provisions as set out
in the Code during the year ended 31 December 2017, with the
exception of deviation set out below.

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Following the step down of Mr. Chen
Hong from the office of chairman and an executive director of the
Company on 14 February 2014, the Company has not appointed
chairman, and the roles and functions of the chairman have been
performed by all the executive directors collectively.

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election
while all directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. During the year, one independent
non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term of service
and two independent non-executive director is not appointed
for a specific term of service. Since each of the independent
non-executive directors is subject to rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company, as such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose of the
Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code.
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Under Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and non-executive director should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views shareholders. Dr.
Huang Chung Hsing, Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy and Mr. Li Qunsheng,
the non-executive directors of the Company were unable to
attend an annual general meeting of the Company held on 12 May
2017 due to their respective commitments elsewhere.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group has adopted a code
of conduct regarding securities transactions in securities of the
Company by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard as set out in the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MEETING

Board Composition

The Board of Directors currently comprises five executive directors,
namely Mr. Yuan Wei, Ms. Zhang Jianxin, Mr. zheng Zhijing, Ms. Lin
Yan and Ms. Wong Hiu Pui and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Li Qunsheng, Mr. Wang Xinsheng and Ms.
Lu Xiaowei. The Board is responsible for the overall management
of the Group. It focuses on directing the corporate strategies and
supervising the business, significant affairs and daily operation
of the Group. Biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 22 to 25 of this annual report.
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Following the step down of Mr. Chen Hong from the office of
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company on 14
February 2014, the Company has not appointed chairman, and
the roles and functions of the chairman have been performed by all
the executive directors collectively. The Board provide the Group
with strategic direction and ensure its effectiveness in a timely
manner. Whereas Ms. Wang Hui, the chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the strategic planning of its various
business units, and day-to-day management of its operation.

Currently one independent non- executive directors are appointed
for a specific term of service and two independent non-executive
director is not appointed for a specific term of service. Since each
of the independent non-executive directors is subject to rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company, as such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to serve the
purpose of the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code.
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Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly. During the year ended 31 December
2017, there were 29 board meetings and 1 general meeting

EEEERRRRAE

EFerETEeR - REE_FT—tF+=-A
=+—BLEFE ARABETOREETEEH 1X

held to discuss the overall strategy, the operation and financial MR A2 AT ie g NEE 2 28 RITFRIR

performance of the Group, and to approve important matters
such as the annual results, quarterly results, interim results and

dividends, the Group’s businesses and investments, etc. The T DN 1 O
attendance of each director at the board meetings and general

meeting are set out as follows:

Attendance of
Board Meeting

WHUEINFERAE - FEEE  PRREANRE A%
BzEBRRESFEREH - SESHREFEEH

Attendance of
General Meeting

EEgeRHERE IR A E HifERC i
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yuan Wei RIESRE 29/29 2/2
Ms. Zhang Jianxin SRR T 28/29 0/2
Mr. Wong Wai Wa FRESE 8/23 0/2
Mr. Zheng Zhijing EMER LA 11/17 0/0
Ms. Lin Yan M2+ 1117 0/0
Ms. Wong Hiu Pui FEE L+ 5/6 0/0
Independent Non-Executive Directors B #HTES
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing HREF T 9/28 0/2
Ms. Li Ya Ru PR+ 10/27 0/2
Mr. Li Qunsheng TR G 10/29 0/2
Mr. Wang Xinsheng FHAELE 0/2 0/0
Ms. Lu Xiaowei EEE Rt 0N 0/0
The company secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes NENEETECHBARENEESEERMNETE
of all board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are BEeeR R L 2R VRERESSH
normally circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable B—EBAERENErEREN HESREER
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’ MxEERAtESER-
inspection.
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The executive directors and senior management meet regularly to
review company business matters and escalate the matters to the
board meeting for further discussion if necessary. The Board and
the Directors can seek independent professional advice whenever
necessary at the Company’s expenses. Furthermore, they can
have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures are duly complied with and
advising the Board on corporate governance and compliance
matters.

In accordance to the Board’s current practice and Code Provision
A.1.7 of the Code, any material transaction involving a conflict
of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director will be
considered and dealt with by the Board by a duly convened
Board meeting. It also requires the directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their associates have
a material interest.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

In Compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company now has three independent non-
executive directors representing half of the Board with one of them
having appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. Currently it has complied
with the relevant Rules. one independent non-executive directors
are appointed for a fixed term of service whereas two independent
non-executive director is not appointed for a fixed term of service.

The Company has, through the nomination committee of
the Board, reviewed the independence of, and received an
appointment and annual confirmation of independence from, each
of the independent non-executive directors, and considers all the
independent non-executive directors independent in accordance
with the guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Delegation to Board Committee and
Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for business development,
leadership, management and control of the Group and is
responsible for promoting the success of the Group by directing,
supervising and monitoring the Group’s affairs. It has established
three committees, namely the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. All of the committees have
written terms of reference in accordance with the Code. More
details of these committees are set out in separate sections of this
report.

The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to the
executive directors and chief executive officer (“CEO”) to facilitate
the efficient day to day management of the Group’s business.
In addition, the Board delegates to the remuneration committee
authorities to determine remuneration for executive directors and
members of senior management.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors should keep abreast of their collective responsibilities
as Directors and of the business and activities of the Group.
Directors receive regular updates and presentations on changes
and developments to the Group’s business and to environments
in which the Group operates, as well as their responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors

BE_TtF+-_A=T—BHULFE BEFEBNU

participated in the continuous professional developments in THAZEEWUEESEE &ML ESBgE
relation to regulatory updates, the duties and responsibilities of the BEMAEBERISEHERETE
Directors and the business of the Group in the following manner:

Training received (Yes/No)

BEZEI(RB)

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Yuan Wei RERAE VYes 52
Ms. Zhang Jianxin REFHLZ L Yes &
Mr. Wong Wai Wa TERELE Yes 7=
Mr. Zheng Zhijing EEREE Yes 72
Ms. Lin Yan N (Regmm Yes &
Ms. Wong Hiu Pui TR+ Yes &
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAFHITES
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing BB+ VYes 52
Ms. Li Ya Ru PRI L Yes &
Mr. Li Qunsheng TRERGAE Yes =&
Mr. Wang Xinsheng FRAESLE Yes 7=
Ms. Lu Xiaowei ¢ Yes &

Training received included:

A attending internal/external briefing/seminar session in relation
to corporate governance; or
B reading materials in relation to regulatory update

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee on 26

November 2001 with written terms of reference for the purpose of

reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting and

internal control procedures in compliance with the GEM Listing

Rules. The committee currently comprises three independent non-

executive directors, namely Mr. Li Qunsheng (the chairman of the

committee), Mr. Wang Xinsheng and Ms. Lu Xiaowei.
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The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control system of the Group, to review
the audit plan, audit findings and independence of the auditors
of the Company, to review the Group’s financial information and
financial statements, annual reports, interim reports and quarterly
reports, and to provide advice and recommendation thereon to the
Board.

The Board also delegated certain corporate governance functions
to the audit committee, including the review and monitoring of
(@) the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board; (b) the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (c) the Group’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) the code of conduct
of the Group applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) the
Group’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the audit committee
held 6 meetings to approve the nature and scope of the statutory
audits, and review the annual, interim, quarterly consolidated
financial statements of the Group, and details of the attendance of
each member of the committee are set out as follows:
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Committee Members Attendance
EREEEHE i FE T 8%
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing @B 4/6
Ms. Li Ya Ru FHAn L 5/6
Mr. Li Qunsheng TR AE 6/6
Mr. Wang Xinsheng FRAELE 0/0
Ms. Lu Xiaowei BBt 0/0
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The minutes of the audit committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. The draft and final versions of the minutes
are circulated to all committee members for their comments and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting.

The Board has not taken any different view from that of the audit
committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

The Company’s annual audited results for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been reviewed by the audit committee.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 23 March 2005
with major functions of (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policies and structure for the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group; (i) determining the
remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management
of the Group; and (iii) reviewing and approving the performance-
based remuneration. The remuneration committee’s terms of
reference are generally aligned with the requirement of Code
Provision B.1.2.

The remuneration committee of the Company is currently chaired
by Mr. Yuan Wei. Other members include Mr. Li Qunsheng and Mr.
Wang Xinsheng. The majority of the members of the remuneration
committee are independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, one meetings of the
remuneration committee was held. All of the members of the
remuneration committee, at the time being, attended the meeting.
The Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management was discussed in the meeting and no changes on
the policy were recommended by the remuneration committee.

>t

%

ES
s M
&
=

ézaﬁﬁﬁmﬁjwi%a°§%ﬁﬁz
BREREBESZHR RAERBAANTX
AR W%Mﬁhﬁiﬁﬁ,r&mkﬁ
KR e

=
T

=
z 5

Wﬁmm

”

O B

oS

S

\|
/I

EEeWEMIE T BRI INE XA
ERZEgHRAEN T —HER-

ERZEQCBEHMARAEBEC
=T BLFREZFEEREE -

FMEES

FHEBER_ETERF A+ =AKL EXE
%mmmm$ﬁﬂ%m$%@ﬁ$&%ma@%z#
B REBRNESFGRERSR  ((BEELARE2E
EEREREEE CHMWESE  Rii)FZELA AR
WS - FNE B o BiESHEREFE TR E
B.1.21& 2 RE

—tF+=-A

REREBRARRFRFHEESLF
BEEREEREHETE
BRI IFMITES

HEKE R
TINEZ B2 2 KZEK

BE-_TtHF+-_A=1T—"BLFEE FMHEZEE
LRT-REH URIEREBFMEZESKREH
B2 LtBHIRARRHEZNSREREHFINZEK

B MBHME B S BEAE SURRABER -

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017 43



Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the nomination committee on 23
March 2012 with major functions of (i) to review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; and (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re- appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and
the CEO.

The nomination committee of the Company is currently chaired by
Mr. Yuan Wei. Other members include Mr. Li Qunsheng and Ms. Lu
Xiaowei. The majority of the members of the nomination committee
are independent non-executive directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, one meetings of the
nomination committee was held. Majority of the members of the
nomination committee, at the time being, attended the meeting to
perform the aforesaid functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the audit service provided by the auditor of
the Group to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
was mutually agreed in view of the scope of services, amounting
to HK$800,000.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the establishment and
maintenance of an adequate and effective internal control system
to safeguard the Group’ assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, and to protect the interests of shareholders of the
Company (collectively “internal controls”).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
conducted a review, which covered the major control procedures
in areas of financial and operations of the Company on the
internal control system of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures.

BUSINESS ETHICS AND
PROFESSIONAL CODE OF CONDUCTS

The Group puts high standards on business ethics and
professional conducts expected of all employees. Employees are
briefed regularly on the code of ethics and on the conducts of
keeping confidentiality of the information of business partners and
the Group. Briefings on the code of ethics and on the conducts
are held for new employees during orientation sessions.

The Group also adopts good employment standards of non-
discrimination policy and fair compensation scheme.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors for preparing the financial
statements and the auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements are set out in the auditor’s report contained in
this annual report.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) may be convened by the
Board on a written requisition of any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meeting of
the Company. The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) of the Company.

Enquiries put to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect
of their rights to the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

There is no provision for shareholders to propose resolutions at
a general meeting under the Cayman Islands Companies Law.
However, shareholders can follow the above procedure and
request to convene an EGM.

Procedures for nominating a new director

(i) If a shareholder wish to propose a person (the “Candidate”)
for election as a director of the Company at a general
meeting, he/she shall deposit a notice at the Company’s
head office at Unit 2609-10, 26th Floor, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, No. 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong (Attention to the Board of Directors and the company
secretary) or the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong;
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(i)

The notice must (i) include the personal information of the
Candidate as required by Rule 17.50 (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules; and (i) be signed by the shareholder concerned and
signed also by the Candidate indicating his/her willingness
to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal
information;

Where the notice is submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election,
the period for lodgment of the notice shall commence on the
day after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
and no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting. In any case, the minimum length of the
period during which any notice to be given shall be at least
seven days;

In order to allow the shareholders sufficient time to receive
and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as
a director of the Company, shareholders are encouraged to
submit and lodge the notice as early as practicable.

Articles of Association

There was no change to the Articles of Association to the

Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with

investors to update the latest business development and financial

performance including the publication of quarterly, interim and

annual reports, the publish and posting of notices, announcements

and circulars on the GEM website and the Company’s website in a

timely manner in order to maintain a high level of transparency, and

to ensure there is no selective disclosure of inside information.

(i) BENARGEMLETRAFE17.50Q) KM E

WﬁﬁﬁA%ﬂAéﬂ Ko (i) s 78 B3 AB B AR R
FE URHEEAZE RPAHREEELFA
%Aaﬂﬁﬂl/\éﬂ

n

(i) fREBER E%ﬁ“ﬁf‘%&ﬁgﬁiﬁ’lﬂxiﬁaLm&
FTEXR: EMHEATERERSR
&=2R .ﬁiTEEAE%Hx%j(Q%Eﬂ A HAT+
B RMITIER T  EfEEER &S+ AR
R

(v) ABEREEZHEMUBIEEEBRRADER
NAEENEZ AR AEBREERFRIN
ERIBAN

AAERAR

BE-_TtHF+-_A=1T—BLFE ARFAZHA
BERARNR A EMNE

REERRE

RAFEREERZT TRNBAEE KB HHE
BEREMBERE B LENGEMAB U kA A R4
WTBFE hHRFERE  TIBREMES
ERBE AR SRR BRASEEENTRE
NEBEHR -

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017 47



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS - B RERHE

The Company is pleased to present our Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report. The report summarises our
performance in ESG during the year ended 31 December 2017.

SECTION A: ENVIRONMENTAL
EMISSIONS

The Group’s business operations do not involve in production
of air, water and land pollutions and hazardous waste. We have
implemented eco-friendly measures to reduce carbon footprint in
our business operations.

USE OF RESOURCES

Green and low-carbon is the only way of sustainable development
of our society. The Group has been committed to become a
resource-saving and environment-friendly enterprise to promote
environmental protection. We have been actively strengthened the
energy-saving in order to reduce emission, and adhered to reduce
energy consumption as a green data centre.

Electricity and Water Saving

Electricity and water saving notices are posted to remind our
employees to save energy.

Paper

The Group encourages our employees to work in a paperless
environment. To avoid unnecessary wastage and promote effective
usage of paper, our employees are encouraged to use emails
instead of hardcopies. If printing is still necessary, we encourage
double-sided printings and copying, or to collect and reuse single-
sided recycle printings and copying for internal documents.

Besides, envelopes and files are also reused by our employees.
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The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group believes that corporate development should not
come at the expense of the environment. Therefore, we adopt
environmental friendly practices in various aspects. For example,
we adopt paperless working environment to reduce unnecessary
wastage.

SECTION B: SOCIAL
EMPLOYMENT

Our Group treats our staffs as the most valuable asset as they help
to develop our core values and cultures. Without their continued
commitment and contribution, we will not be able to operate or
serve our customers. It is therefore our top priority to make sure
that our employees work in a fair, safe, healthy and pleasant
working environment that facilitate their personal growth and
career development.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

We are dedicated to promoting equal opportunities for all of our
employees in different areas, such as recruitment, compensation
and benefits, training and staff promotion. We strongly believe that
each individual has his/her unique strengths that adds value to the
company and the society. We therefore have comprehensive equal
employment opportunities policies in place that protect potential
and existing employees from being discriminated because of
their backgrounds, gender, age, family status, sexual orientation,
disability, race or religion. All employees are assessed based
on their ability, performance and contribution to the company.
The employment contracts are strictly following the relevant
laws and regulations. During the reporting period, there was no
discriminatory act reported or complaint received in relation to
equal opportunity, transfer, promotion, recruitment, termination,
severance, holidays, benefits and training.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIS - B RERHE

HUMAN RIGHTS

Respecting human rights has been an integral part of our approach
to sustainability. We fully comply with labour laws or other relevant
legislations that prohibits child labour and forced labour. We do not
employ any person below the age of eighteen at our workplace.
Our employees’ resting time is flexible and well respected and
the employees enjoy paid holidays in accordance with the laws.
Overtime compensation hours and pays are in line with the local
laws and regulations. No employee is made to work against his/
her will or work as forced labour, or subject to corporal punishment
or coercion of any type related to work. During 2017, we did not
identify any breach in legislation related to these areas.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment for our employees. The Group promise that it fully
complying with all the regulations regarding occupational health
and safety, providing an effective and safe working environment for
our employees. Under this mechanism and measures, no death or
permanent disability case was noted during 2017.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Government organizes regular training on occupational safety
and environmental awareness, and the Group encourages and
requires our employees to attend such training. Finally, the Group’s
internal policies provide that it is not allowed to detain personal
documents and wage of our employees, nor can it be violent or
engraved, such as deliberately causing difficulties, threats and
corporal punishment, and any person that should be taken to force
employees to work.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group believes in nurturing and developing top talents
regardless of race, gender, age, religious belief, pregnancy, marital
status, family status or disability. The Group has policies to ensure
all employees and job applicants enjoy equal opportunities and fair
treatment.
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Appeal Principles and Channels

The Group encourage the management to dialogue with our
employees through a variety of ways to collect staff voices, in
order to maintain a harmonious relationship with our employees.
All of our employees and management of the Group can use mullti-
communication channels for horizontal or vertical communication,
such as e-mail or interviews.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

To promote a good and ethical business culture, we have
established the Code of Conduct (“CoC”) for all employees. Our
CoC are in reference to the anti-corruption policy published by
Hong Kong Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”)
and to the Prevention of Bribery Ordiance (Cap. 201 of HKSAR
Law). Our employees are required to comply strictly with applicable
laws relating to the above acts.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
INTRODUCTION

The Group always remember the social responsibility during
the Group’s operation and development process, with actively
promoting the social development by Internet science and
technology innovation. In view of this, the Group participates
in various community charitable activities and encourage the
participation of employees.

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the Group relating
to emissions, employment, health and safety, labour standards,
product responsibility and anti-corruption during the reporting
period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 % B R 5

To the shareholders of
China E-Information Technology Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
E-Information Technology Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 59 to 170 , which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

No. Key Audit Matter
iR, BREITEE

FREESEE

BRBTFESREAZBNERHEG  RRER
SN BREANETRRERNFR ZFFA
EEAZHMETBEGEVBBRR D ARERRK
ETREN - AZBMTEHREETRERERE
B

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ESt N EERERETSE

1 Investment in an associate.

KA QA

The Group acquired 49% equity interest in Beijing Youl
Lianxu Technology Company Limited (“Youli”) which are
accounted for under the equity method by issuance of
convertible notes with the aggregate principal amount of
HK$91,581,000. Such amount of convertible notes will be
reduced subject to Youli's 2017 and 2018 Profit Targets
as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 11
October 2016.

Under equity method, investment is initially recorded at
cost which is the fair value of the convertible notes issued
minus the fair value of the contingent amount to be reduced
(“contingent consideration”).

The valuation and classification of the convertible note as a
compound financial instrument as well as the valuation of the
contingent consideration is a significant judgement made by
the management. In arriving such judgement, management
has engaged an expert to assist them to come to an
conclusion.

4 5B 7 74 403501 ,581,0007% 7T H0 AT AR 5 M
BT N BBR R A T (LR AE S |) 49%RRHE - T
EARISEAR W BARRSMA-T AT AT
AZAERRE RTRBRERSEMREEN 2 -F
— A RF—/\ERFI B BT IR -

RIgESA RENSRAARIIE  NDBTTRBREZ
AFERBIRAALE((HANRE) ZAFE-

MR (EREASRITE) 2MERFEURIAR
Bz AEARERBEREAHE - NEBZFHER &
BEECREER B REF LR -

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017 53



Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT R

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

No.
iwe

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

FRBETSE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
AREMNETT N AEERRETEE

54

Reclassification of convertible notes
MREREHHHE

Management assessed that the convertible note was a
compound financial instrument with a liability component
and equity component.

The company has an early redemption option before
maturity date of the convertible notes. Management
regards that the early redemption options are closely
related to the host contract and thus not treated the
early redemption option as separate derivatives. The
early redemption option value was included in the liability
component of the financial instrument.
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Reclassification of the convertible notes
AARRIE 2 EF R

We agreed with management’s assessment that the
convertible note was a compound financial instrument by
analyzing the terms of the convertible notes and reference to
HKAS 32.

We regarded management’s treatment that the early
redemption is not a separate derivative as appropriate by
reference to HKAS 39.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

No.
iR

Key Audit Matter
BEETEIE

FRBETSE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET N EERERENSE

Valuation of convertible notes

AHMRER 2 hE

Management regards the early redemption option has
a higher priority of execution than that of the conversion
option of the holder in any circumstances and determines
the fair value of the convertible note as HK$91,581,000.
which is same as the principal amount.

After that the company first determines the carrying
amount of the liability component by measuring the
fair value of the liability component (including the early
redemption option). The carrying amount of the equity
component is then determined by deducting the fair
value of the liability component from the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole.
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Valuation of convertible notes

AR R 2 (18

We assessed the valuation methodologies used and
regarded as appropriate.

We then checked information used to determine the key
assumptions, including the share price at date of issue of
convertible notes and discount rates, to available market
data.

We also performed a review on the sensitivity analyses on
the key assumptions.

We found that assumptions adopted in relation to the
valuation to be supportable and reasonable based on
available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT R

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

No.
iR

Key Audit Matter
BEETEIE

FRBETSE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN ET N EERERENSE

56

Fair value of the contingent consideration
IAREZ A FE

Management estimated the fair value of contingent
consideration by taking into consideration of the
probability of meeting Youli's 2017 and 2018 Profit
Targets, the historical data and profit forecast. The fair
value is then estimated at HK$1,700,000.

EHEBREEENEN _T—tFR_T—/\FiKFH
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Fair value of the contingent consideration

ZAREZATHE

We assessed methodology and assumptions used in relation
to the contingent consideration.

We considered the reasonableness of the profit forecast and
probability of meeting the profit targets by reference to the
actual results of Youli.

We also performed a review on the sensitivity analyses on
the key assumptions.

We found that assumptions adopted in relation to the
valuation to be supportable and reasonable based on
available evidence.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the Other
Information. The Other Information comprises all the information
in the Group’s 2017 annual report (other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon) (“Other
Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and
Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and that comply
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Hgs

ERFERAHEMENAE EMENBE #X
B - tHFFRANAAEEH(BETERGEANH
HR LA ZBET N SRS ([ EEHR )

AZBENEREMBHRROERL NREEMEFR -
AZBE T I HZEEMERBEREMTANEE

=4
i o

RBENZBEEGREMBBROBS NMEBEINE
TRMEBEMER FlBEd EREMENES
BGAMERR KA LB EETHBIRT AT RN
BAFEEXABREUFFEERHERRANE
e ERAZBEN D ITE THE - M A ERAD R /S
AR FEEAMREL A EBMTFEREZE
B o BT AAZERED AL B3R -

ESNEEENRSYBRE
ARENEE

EXFRERBDTEGTMASEMNFTEYER
SR ERBBARNGINEESRCHREREM
RENERE M BRER  YHERRREEEMHERE
ML N R R EF S R T S B E KRR R
MFABOARMEERE -

KRB MBREAR EFARME EEERSE
REMBED  WHEERER MR AR EL LA BN
ER AREAFELERSTER BRIFEZAE
# BEREFRAFILEE  SHBEEMERNEN

BEEERAAEE ESREMNMBHRERRE-

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017 57



Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 % B R 5

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in 2 manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 % B R 5

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Wang Tai Ivan.

McMillan Woods SG CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Wang Tai Ilvan
Practising Certificate Number: P02900

Hong Kong
28 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive Income

GEEERkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FExT FAT
Revenue Wi 7 52,757 46,277
Cost of goods sold and services provided  $5& & T R IRFS 2 B AR (30,154) (26,540)
Gross profit EF 22,603 19,737
Other income Hblzs 8 9,040 138
Other losses H i EsiE 9 (3,079) (21,740)
Administrative expenses TERX (65,335) (42,955)
Impairment losses on other receivables H i AR RORE S B - (60,887)
Equity-settled share-based payment ARG 48 2 AR S (S 508 (28,905) (34,575)
Finance costs, net A& K AN FEE 10 (6,370) (569)
Share of result of investments in associates FE{5 Bk L A TR E 7 24 5,649 -
Loss before tax BRBLATE 8 11 (66,397) (140,851)
Income tax FriS it 13 - -
Loss for the year TEERBE 11 (66,397) (140,851)
Loss for the year attributable to: BT ALTEAAFEEES :

Owners of the Company ZIN/NIEE 2SN (76,543) (149,736)
Non-controlling interests FEER S 10,146 8,885
(66,397) (140,851)

Loss per share BRER 15
— Basic —HK (2.21 cents fl)  (4.96 cents 1llI)
— Diluted —#E N/A ~ER N/A 7~ iE
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other

Comprehensive Income

GEEERkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+F+-_A=+—HL=FE

2017 2016
— —ERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET FAT
Loss for the year REEERE (66,397) (140,851)
Other comprehensive expense Hih2mE
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently E 14 i EFT 7 AE = 1825 9IHH -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating foreign SRR E GINEFGE 4 v [E 5, =58
operations arising during the year 542 311
Other comprehensive expense, net of Hftt 2B (FBRFTEF)
income tax 542 311
Total comprehensive expense AEEREHMAXZARHE
for the year (65,855) (140,540)
Total comprehensive (expense) income UTATEAAFEZE(FAL)
for the year attributable to: Wasia s
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIESYEUN (76,001) (149,425)
Non-controlling interests eI 10,146 8,885
(65,855) (140,540)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Se BB R

As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B FExT FAT
Assets and liabilities EERAE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Goodwil S 16 - -
Contingent consideration receivable RIS s AARAB 20 520 -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KR 17 8,228 1,401
Investment in an associate WEHENT] 18 101,743 50,000
110,491 51,401
Current assets REEE
Imvestment held for sale BIELERKRE 19 38,000 -
Due from an associate FEUSHE & A R FRIR 32 14,304 -
Other receivables HAb AR K 21 77,239 85,050
Financial assets at fair value through profit  i#i@Bz5IE A FESEY S AR
or loss 22 565 7,952
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEFMEIER 23 20,767 51,128
150,875 144,130
Total assets EEHRE 261,366 195,531
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMRR 24 28,330 32,560
Convertible notes AT IR 28 - 9,396
28,330 41,956
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Convertible notes AR EE 28 24,420 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 25 5,891 -
30,311 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Se BB R

As at 31 December 2017
RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

5T FHET FAT

Total liabilities 8E858 58,641 41,956
Net current assets RBEETE 122,545 102,174
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERRBERS 233,036 153,575
Net assets EEFHE 202,725 153,575

Capital and reserves BAR#HiE

Share capital N 26 356,590 330,498

Reserves B (159,714) (183,219)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR 5,849 6,296
Total equity ERERS 202,725 153,575
The consolidated financial statement on pages 63 to 161 were FOIEEF161EMNGAUBHREN_E—\F=A

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28
March 2018 and are signed on it behalf by:

Yuan Wei
=E
Director

EF

“HN\BEESSHERFEETIE XA TIESK

HE

Zhang Jianxin
SRR
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

Convertible
Share-based  Exchange notes  PRC staff Non
Share Share  payment fluctuation equity award fund Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
FEET
DR%M  ERR® TEREE  KBES
RE  REOEE il R EERE W REE CHEE 22 - L)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TR Ti#n Tin TiEn Ti#n Tin TiEn TR
1 January 2016 R=E-"E-A—H 204,510 228,254 30,644 8,341 - 6,508 (397,084) 171,128 6,585 177,708
(Loss) proft for the year HER (ER)EH - - . . - S (4973 (14973%)  88%  (140851)
Other comprehensive income REREMPANE
for the year - - - 311 - - - 311 - 31
Total comprehensive income TEE2ENG(ER)
(expense) for the year ek - - - 3 - - (149,736)  (149,425) 8885  (140,540)
Dividends paid tonon-controling~~ 3EfARiER ST 7
interest ) - - - - - - - - 0,174 0,174
Issue of convertble notes BTARER - - - - 1,174 - - 1,174 - 1,174
Issue of employee share option BTESREME - - 34,575 - - - - 34,575 - 34,575
Issue of shares by exercised of REREETEMET
share option f&in 16,940 38,541 (8,049) - - - - 47432 - 47,432
Transfer to PRC steff award fund ~~ EZE 2 T#E)
resenve S - - - - - 2,400 - 2,400 - 2,400
Issue of new shares G 19,048 20952 - - - - - 40,000 - 40,000
At 31 December 2016 e
+ZA=t-8 330,498 287,747 57,070 8,652 1,174 8,958 (546,820) 147,279 6,296 153,575
(Loss) profitfor the year REE(BB)EN - - - - - - (16543 (76,543) 10,146 (66,307)
Other comprehensive income REEEMEANE
for the year - - - 542 - - - 542 - 542
Total comprehensive income TEE2ENE(FR)
(expense) for the year o - - - 542 - - (76,543) (76,001) 10,146 (65,855)
Dividends paid tonon-controling ~ [3ERRIER T2
inferest Be - - - - - - - - (10599  (1059)
Issue of convertible notes BOAEREE - - - - 59,511 - - 59,511 - 59,511
Defetted tax liabilty on recegnition DAAREEERD
of equity componet of convertble A7 ERERIAEE
notes 9819) 9819) - 819
Issue of share option BiTERE - - 28,905 - - - - 28,905 - 28,905
Issue of shares by exercised of REREETEMET
share option f&in 10,700 23,207 (7,022) - - - - 26,885 - 26,885
Transfer o PRC staff award fund ~~ EZHEE TR
resene EoRE - - - - - 2,112 - 2112 - 2112
Redemption of convertiblenotes B AKRZHE - - - - (1,174) - 1,174 - - -
Conversion of convertible notes SRTHRTE 15,392 21,829 - - (23,805) - - 13,416 - 13416
Defrred tax liabllty released upon ~ EATARZREEER
conversion of convertiable note EiEaE - - - - 3,928 - - 3,928 - 3928
At 31 December 2017 RIT—E
+-A=t-H 356,590 332,783 78,953 9,194 29,815 11,730 (622,189) 196,876 5,849 202,725
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE_Z—+F+_A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —EF—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BieE FHER FHT
Cash flow from operating activities REERELCHESRE
Loss before tax FRAE A ES 18 (66,397) (140,851)
Adjustments for: A& AR -
Finance cost, net BhE K A5 6,370 569
Depreciation e 2,031 1,289
Interest income FLEUA (203) (63)
Equity-settled share-based payments VARG AE & 2 ARG 2 53k 28,905 34,575
Net realised (gain)/losses on financial assets & @B ﬁi’&?@afgzzfﬁﬂiﬁ
at fair value through profit or loss EZERkE) EEREE (192 10,203
Net unrealised losses REBEIEFE 259 8,149
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME MR LREZ EE
equipment - 3,388
Net Share of result of investments in JEAGR B A RIIRE 2 545
associates FEE (5,649) -
Fair value change of contingent SAREATEES
consideration 1,180 -
Loss on investment held-for-sale BEHEREHE 1,640 -
PRC staff award fund RS THREES 2,772 2,400
Impairment loss on other receivables HAth eI AR ZURVB S 18 - 60,887
Reversal impairment loss on other B E b R MR BR SR EE 1B
receivables (2,975) -
Exchange gain BEE 34 W 25 (5,470) -
Operating cash flows before EEESHBAIKEEE Y
movements in working capital RERE (87,729) (19,444)
Changes in inventories FEEH - 37
Changes in other receivables H b AR E 10,681 3,666
Changes trade and other payables B 5 R E M IR E 5,770 (26,923)
Cash used in operations RELKMARS (21,278) (42,664)
Overseas taxes paid BAHEINMRIE - -
Net cash used in operating activites & EBHAREEE (21,278) (42,664)
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2017 2016
—E—+tHF —EF—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BEE FHET FAT
Cash flow from investing activities RETHELECESRE
Payment of property, plant and equipment  Ft¥13 - B MERE SN 2 KT (8,849) (790)
Proceed from disposal of property, plant HEYE  WENE 1%2?)%?5}?}7\
and equipment - 200
Purchases of financial assets at fair value BB FBERIEA T ETEZS
through profit or loss BhEE - (26,448)
Proceed from financial assets at fair value  Fi@ERIE AT EAEZ2HE
through profit or loss B2 FTSE08 7,320 8,134
Interest received EUFE 203 53
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest of [A]— i1 /B A 7] 7 FEIEARRERS 2
a subsidiary R Z BB (10,593) ©.174)
Loans to an associate i /N (14,200) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETHTARE R (26,119) (28,025)
Cash flow from financing activities METEFMEREERE
Redemption of Convertible notes LY et (10,000)
Issue of convertible notes BITR[ IR AR ZE T - 10,000
Exercised of share option 1T{E B A 26,885 47,432
Net cash generated from financing RETBMERSTFE
activities 16,885 57,432
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRFESEZEEA 2RO FE
equivalents (30,512) (13,257)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FHzReRESEEER
beginning of the year 51,128 64,061
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MERE ) 2 8 151 324
Cash and cash equivalentsattheend FRZHEERBRELEEEE
of the year 23 20,767 51,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

68

GENERAL INFORMATION

China E-Information Technology Group Limited (the
“Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands on 10 July
2001. The shares of the Company are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section of
“Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants for the first time in the current year.

HKAS 7 Amendments Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 12 Amendments Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3. ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HKFRSs

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

3. ERMEMRERZEEME
&L
A58 30 442 6 P T 51 A M R A
58T RAG ST BB R A ¢

Effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after
R S B
2 B BRI AERL

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
Amendments

BEMBHRELENE10RLEESE REEFEABRE QT

SHERFESHE(ZE——F) 2B IE
AR
Amendments to HKFRSs
BB B ELRL 2 EFTAR

FEHUE
HKAS 40 Amendments Transfers of Investment Property
BB G ERIEA05R1EFT EEIREME
HKFRS 2 Amendments Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions

DR RS0 EREE

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS
4 Insurance Contracts

EEBMBEImEER

BB B HmEER B2 BT R
HKFRS 4 Amendments

FRM B IREERFAR ZAETA

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

EERFZHENEELER T

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
—ENEE R -RFEREBMBHMEELN 2

| FARERREN T ERAEEY

To be determined”

1 January 2018
—ET-N\F—H—H
1 January 2018
—E-N\F—H—H
1 January 2018

—Z-N\F—H—H
1 January 2018

—E-NF—A—H

BHREEANESREM TR

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BB TS ERIEO5R THIA —E-N\F¥—H—H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
BB IR E LRI E 1558 REEF ALK —T-N\F—H—H

HKFRS 15 Amendments
with Customers
BBV MEERFE155R L IEFT AR
==
/B
HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22
Consideration

FE(ARMBEREREZES )R INERXZMBHNR(E

E=1]

FEEE225%
Amendments to HKFRSs
BB WA R 2 15T A

FE#E
HKFRS 9 Amendments
BB EERE R ZEF] A REEXFMEREAME
HKFRS 16 Leases
BAV B MEERE 165 GiEh=4

HK(FRIC) Interpretation 23

1255235
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
BEMBHREERIFET5R REEEH

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
BEEMBREEEISRREZEFPEONKEZE

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
T ERBEBMBHREER

TE-RFE T

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
ER(EARNBRERBERER )R MEHEENTHE T

1 January 2018
—EZ-NF—-A—H
1 January 2018
—T-N\F—-A—H
1 January 2019
—T-hF—A—H

1 January 2019
—E-h&F—H—H
1 January 2019
—E-NF—A—H
1 January 2019
—E-h&F—H—H

1 January 2021
S =
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3.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HKFRSs (Continued)

* On 6 January 2016, the HKICPA issued “Effective Date
of Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28", following
the International Accounting Standards Board’s equivalent
amendments. This update defers/removes the effective
date of the amendments in “Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor or its Associate or Joint Venture” that the
HKICPA issued on 7 October 2014. Early application of these
amendments continues to be permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above new
standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards will not result in a significant impact on the results
and financial position of the Group except which is set out
below:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating and finance leases is
removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to
use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions are short-term and low-
value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the
group’s operating leases. As at the reporting date, the
group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$11,250,000. The group estimates that approximately
50% of these relate to payments for short-term and low
value leases which will be recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

3.

72

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

However, the group has not yet assessed what other
adjustments, if any, are necessary for example because
of the change in the definition of the lease term and the
different treatment of variable lease payments and of
extension and termination options. It is therefore not yet
possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities that will have to be recognised on adoption of
the new standard and how this may affect the group’s profit
or loss and classification of cash flows going forward.

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2019. At this stage, the group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date. The group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach and will
not restate comparative amounts for the year prior to first
adoption.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial assets which have been measured at fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. Al
inter-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstance indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ The contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(o) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. On acquisition
of the investment, any difference between the cost of the
investment and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
follows:

(@ Goodwill relating to an associate is included in the
carrying amount of the investment. Amortisation of that
goodwill is not permitted.

(o)  Any excess of the group’s share of the net fair value
of the investee’s identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment is included as income in the
determination of the group’s share of the associate ‘s
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

When the most recently available financial statements of an
associate is different from the Group’s reporting date, the
Group may take advantage of the provision contained in
HKAS 28 whereby it is permitted to include the attributable
share of associate’s results based on the financial
statements drawn up to a noncoterminous period end
where the difference must be no greater than three months.
Adjustments shall be made for the effects of significant
transactions or events that occur between that date and the
date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investment in an associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associate is not individually tested for impairment.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in the
associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the profit
or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (Continued)

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the profit or loss.

Business combination and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

° equity interests issued by the group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwiill
(Continued)

For each business combination, the acquirer measures the
non- controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwiill
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquire
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwiill
(Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this
circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit retained.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell and
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place wither in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient date are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date
of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to
the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale
(Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion
of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as
held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method in
relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale from
the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment)
is classified as held for sale. Any retained portion of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture that has not
been classified as held for sale continues to be accounted
for using the equity method. The Group discontinues the
use of the equity method at the time of disposal when the
disposal results in the Group losing significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture.

After the disposal takes place, the Group accounts for
any retained interest in the associate or joint venture in
accordance with HKAS 39 unless the retained interest
continues to be an associate or a joint venture, in which case
the Group uses the equity method (see the accounting policy
regarding investments in associates or joint ventures above).

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held

for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fiar value less costs to sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods and services, or for administrative
purpose are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write

off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to

its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal

annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the lease
terms or 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continuead)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than trade
and other receivables, inventories and financial assets),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises.

Financial asset
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group within the scope of HKAS
39 are classified as loans and receivables, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. WWhen
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value
through profit or not, directly attributable transaction costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTEGTTHEE®

POLICIES (Continueq)
Financial asset (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continueqd)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include other receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and cash
and cash equivalents.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in interest
income in the profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment
is recognised in the profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial asset (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to needs
for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale assets valuation reserve until the assets is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss is
recognised in the profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss in
other operating expenses and removed from the available-
for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest and dividends
earned are reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial asset (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continueq)
Financial asset (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near term
are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s
intent to do so significantly changes in the foreseeable future,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets in
rare circumstances. Reclassification to loans and receivables
is permitted when the financial assets meet the definition
of loans and receivables and the Group has the intent and
ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity. Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is
permitted only when the entity has the ability and intent to
hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-
sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss
over the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over the
remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If
the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the profit or
loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value are recognised in profit or loss
within other income or other expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when (i) the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired; or (i) the Group has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to
repay.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in the profit
or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in the profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not
carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in first-out basis and
comprises, comprises costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flow,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivates designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in
case of loans and borrowing, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and financial derivative.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the date
of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are
satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate method amortisation process.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continueq)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and borrowings (Continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
profit or loss.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of
the consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
notes is measured at fair value based on the present value
of the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do not have a conversion
option. The equity component is initially recognised at the
difference between the fair value of the convertible notes
as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method. The equity component is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the note is converted, the capital reserve, together with
the carrying amount of the liability component at the time
of conversion, is transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. If the note is
redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to retained
profits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligations, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flow (where the effect is material).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i

(i)

Tuition revenue from educational programs is
recognised on a time-proportion basis, using the
straight-line method, over the duration of the relevant
educational programs.

Revenue from sales of educational materials and
products is recognised when the products are
delivered and title has passed to customers.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(i)

100

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in
the profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independent administered fund.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service payments are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision will be made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service payments as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation scheme (“Scheme”) to remunerate its
employees.

For share options granted under the Scheme, the fair
value of the employees’ services rendered in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense immediately and credited to the share- based
payment reserve under equity. Where the employees
are required to meet vesting conditions before they
become entitled to the options, the Group recognises
the fair value of the options granted over the vesting
periods. At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises the
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, in
the profit or loss, and a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based payment reserve.

Upon exercise of the share options, the resulting shares
issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and
the excess of the exercise price over the nominal value
of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share
premium account. The equity amount is recognised in
the share- based payment reserve until the option is
exercised when it is transferred to the share premium
account. If the options lapse unexercised, the related
share-based payment reserve is transferred directly to
retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a
finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at
the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the profit or loss
S0 as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable under
the operating leases are credited to the profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is
the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the profit
or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
All differences are taken to the profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non- monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period and their profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flow, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. BESTHETR &R

108

JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account their estimated residual value. The Company
assesses annually the residual value and the useful lives of
the property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimates, such differences from the
original estimates will affect the depreciation charges in the
year in which the estimates change.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability and age of
the trade and other receivables. Appropriate impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in the profit
or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired.

In determining whether impairment on trade and other
receivables is required, the Company takes into consideration
the current creditworthiness, the past collection history, age
status and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only
made for receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is
recognised on the difference between the estimated future
cash flow expected to receive of which discounted by using
the original effective interest rate and its carrying value. If the
financial conditions of customers of the Company were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional impairment may be required.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted was calculated using
the Black-Scholes valuation model/Trinomial Option Pricing
Model which requires the management’s estimates and
assumptions on significant calculation inputs, including the
estimated life of share options granted, the volatility of share
price and expected dividend yield. Change in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATIONS

(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill needs impairment requires
an estimation of the value is use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flow is less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill is
nil (2016: Nil).

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Business segments

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order
to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance.

The Group is currently having one continuing operating
segment on a single business in a single geographical
location, which is the provision of an internet platform for the
facilitation of education program in Chinese medicine and
other advisory and training programs in the PRC, and all
the assets are substantially located in the PRC. Accordingly,
there is only one single reportable segment of the Group
which is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT 6. B&EBER®
INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about a major customer FEEFEFZ2ER
No transactions with a single external customer amount to REZ2 T+ FN_T—R"F+ZA=1+—
10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the years ended AEFE BMESEINFEFZRIHENAE
31 December 2017 and 2016. B A10%3 A E o
7. REVENUE 7. WA
An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the years is as AREBRFRNZ EEBOMMOT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Tuition fee revenue HEREZWA 52,757 46,277
52,757 46,277
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HAbA
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income FEHA 203 53
Sundry income FETRUA 200 85
Reversal of impairment loss on other receivable £t & U 2018 27 (B ES 1B (B 2,975 -
Exchange gains b 5 e 5,470 -
Net realised gain on financial assets at fair value #EiBIBRIZAFEAEZ S RVEE
through profit or loss 2 BRWEFE 192 -
9,040 138

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017 111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER LOSSES 9. HEE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Net realised losses on financial assets at fair ~ #EiBERIZA T EAEZ S REE
value through profit or loss 2 B8 FME - 10,208
Net unrealised losses on financial assets at fair  #EBIBRIZAFEAEZ S RVEE
value through profit or loss 2 KRB EEFE 259 8,149
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BE R&E 2 EE
equipment - 3,388
Impairment loss on asset held for sale (net of  FFYEHE & E 2 BIEEE (FIBR A
gain on waiver of contigent consideration of (&2 ##510,000,0007 7T )
HK10,000,000) 1,640 -
Fair Value change of contigent consideration ~ FEU S AAR(E 2 AFEE
receivable 1,180 -
3,079 21,740
10. FINANCE COSTS, NET 10. L& AN FEE
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBx FAT
Interest expenses on financial liabilities e SN e = N - D)
measured at amortised cost F 6,370 569
6,370 569
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 1M1. AFEFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Loss before tax has been arrived at after BRI ESIE E 0 2SI -
charging:
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)  EER AN (BIEEEE)
— Basic salaries and allowances —EXREe RER 16,184 12,144
— Contributions to defined contribution plans ~ — EZB k1212 3% 814 517
— Other — HAh 1,469 827
— Equity-settled share-based payments — ARSI H 2 AR A 50E 27,278 22,167
Total staff costs e BRI 45,745 35,655
Auditors remuneration: ZHENE S
— Audit service — 2RI 800 600
Legal and professional fee FERBEEER 24,877 10,258
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4% - = MR ETE 2,031 1,289
Payments under operating lease for i RIEFAL LT LA TR
land and buildings 3,215 1,982
Equity-settled share-based payments DA E 2 DARRSZ 3008
(including staff and directors) (BiEREENRES) 28,905 34,575
Impairment losses on other receivables HE At pe W AR RUR B8 - 60,887
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEME
EMOLUMENTS

a. Directors’ emoluments a. EEEE

Salaries, Equity- Payments for
allowances  Retirement seftled Performance termination of
and benefits scheme share-based related  service of
Fees inkind contributions  payments bonuses directors Total
H& ORER  BAGE HRELEZ R KLES
we  EYNE R URZATE  HBEA RE2AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TERL AR TER

For the year ended HE-E-t&+CH
31 December 2017 =t-ALEE

Executive Directors HTEZS

Mr. Yuan Wei rEEE 1,000 170 18 501 83 - 1,772
Ms. Zhang Jianxin REFRT 600 - - - - - 600
Mr. Wong Wai Wa TRELE 480 - - - - - 480
Mr. Zheng Zhiing HERELE 375 - - 1,669 - - 2,044
Ms. Lin Yan et 375 - - - - - 375
Ms.Wong Hiu Pui TEELT 202 - - - - - 202
Independent Non- BUKHTES
Executive Directors
Dr.HuangChungHsing ~ E=EfEL 57 - - 334 - - 3901
Ms. LiYaRu EY S 92 - - 501 - - 593
Mr. Li Qunsheng FRBEE 100 - - 501 - - 601
Mr. Wang Xinsheng THERE 8 - - - - - 8
Ms. Lu Xiaowei i 6 - - - - - 6
3,295 170 18 3,506 83 - 7,072
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

a.

12. EEREEME®

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) a. EEXMe@
Salaries, Equity- Payments for
alowances  Retirement settled  Performance  termination of
and benefits scheme  share-based related service of
Fees inkind  contributions payments bonuses directors Total
HooERRk  RUAGrE MRESE R RIEES
e Ehfla 3 DRIATE REEA REOR 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEL FEr TET TET TEL ThEL
For the year ended HE-E-~EtCA
31 December 2016 =t-HLEE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Yuan Wei rELE 690 205 18 1,763 60 - 2,736
Mr. Yang Jiin (note i BE R (i) 400 - 9 - - - 409
Ms. Zhang Jianxin (note i) SREERT £ (M) 282 - - 881 - - 1,163
Mr. Wang Wehua (noteiv) T A% (HizHy) 34 - - 5318 - - 5,852
Non-Executive Director ~ ##1T8%
Mr. Li Xiangjun (note ERELAE(FH) 50 - - - - - 50
Independent Non- BUFHTES
Executive Directors
Dr.Huang ChungHsing ~ B=EEL 60 - - - - - 60
Ms. Li Ya Ru Nancy BRI L 100 - - - - - 100
Mr. Li Qunsheng (notei)  ZF#ak s (M) 100 - - - - - 100
1,716 205 27 8,462 60 - 10,470
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

a. Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:
(i) Mr. Zheng Zhijing was appointed on 16 May 2017
(ii) Ms. Lin Yan was appointed on 16 May 2017
(iii) Mr. Wong Wai Wa was resigned on 31 August 2017
(iv)  Ms. Wong Hiu Pui was appointed on 31 August 2017
(V) Ms. Li Ya Ru was resigned on 4 December 2017

(Vi) Mr. Wang Xinsheng was appointed on 4 December
2017

(vi)  Mr. Huang Chung Hsing was resigned on 11
December 2017

(Vi) Ms. Lu Xiaowei was appointed on 11 December 2017

The amounts of equity-settled share-based payments
were measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set
out in note 4 to the financial statements.

None of the directors of the Company waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the
Company and no incentive payment for joining the
Company to any director of the Company during the
two years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

12. EEREEME®

EEME

N

() BERLEN T —+FRHA+/HE
=1t

(i) M Z+TR - TE—+tFRATNBEZ
£

iy EAELEER-_Z—FNA=ZT+—AH
BT

vy TEELZIHR-_ZE—tFNA=+—H
ER(T

v) FHEHMZITHR_ZT—tF+-AEHE
£

Vi) EHELERZT—tF+-_ATNHE
=1t

Vi) BREBITHR-_ZT—tF+-A+—H
BT

(i) EEHZEIN-T—tF+-HA+—H
BT

AR 5 32 DA B 4 BB T IR IS 75
REM AR AR D RABRL LS
2R R -

HE-ZZ—+tFRk=ZFT—X~F+=ZA
=+ RAIMEFE BEAQFESK
ESRERBEEAEARTZMNZBE -
INEFR AR R B TR REFIE T
RNABMEAIES -
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEM T
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

b. Five highest paid individuals b. EUESHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments AEERUEaEFATBERRAFTESH
in the Group, Nil (2016: two) were directors of the —E-RFWMB)EF WL EHN
Company, whose remunerations are included in the REXEE N TFTEBHAR(ZZE—R
disclosures above. The remunerations of the remaining F=ZB)ANTZHMOT -

five (2016: three) individuals were as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries allowances and benefits inkind %4 ~ 2BE R EWHE 2,075 300
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIMHR - -
Equity-settled share-based payments VARG HEAE & 2 AR S 53008 13,187 8,890
15,262 9,190

Their remunerations were within the following band: WEZHMNER T EE R -

Number of individuals
AE
2017 2016
—E—tF TR
HKS$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z'21,000,000/8 7T 0

HK$1,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T 26,000,000/ 7T 5 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

A

13. INCOME TAX 13. 8%
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no Hong Kong B Z—+F+-A=+—HIEE &R
profits tax has been provided for as the Group did not NEBWENESEES T ERBREN - HF
generate any taxable profits in Hong Kong (2016: Nil). BER BB EMBE(ZZE—RF - M@)o
PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income tax PRI B AR JTiR25%( —ZF — NG 1 25%) K
at 25% (2016: 25%). Taxation arising in other jurisdictions BRGNP DEMSH Bt e iERES
is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective ZRIBRSERDEER 2RI ERAAE -
jurisdictions.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss AEENHMBREGAEGMEMPEKRTZERZ
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss MR RIE RS EBRNT ¢

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Loss before tax BRTIRIEE (66,397) (140,851)

Tax at respective applicable tax rates LIERE A R E 2 1A (9,432) (14,499)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ TNRIFNFRFHSZ 7 TG &

purposes 22,628 24,460

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes B8 ;AU A 2 B 16 57 2 (16,804) (11,569)

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIEE B 2 RIS & 3,608 1,608

Income tax for the year REFZRFTEHR - -
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14. DIVIDEND

15

16

No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31
December 2017, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2016: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the
loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately HK$76,543,000 (2016: HK$149,736,000),
and based on the weighted average number of shares
in issue during the year of approximately 3,460,231,376
ordinary shares, as adjusted to reflect the exercise of
share options and conversion of convertible notes (2016:
3,020,884,000 ordinary shares, as adjusted to reflect the
shares by exercise of share options and share repurchased)

14.

15.

iz 5

BE_ZT—+tF+-_A=+t—HIEFEIHEK
SR AR B, FASRAE HA R 18 JRdm s
IRHERIRE(ZF—REF « f&)e

BREE
BREAEBEDIREAFEARAAFTEA
FE {5 /&5 18 4976,543,000/ T( = B — X 4 ¢
149,736,000/ 7T ) + JA M #8358 DA ) B 4F (91T
{FREAR#E s rT I R RIR MBI T IR 2 F R
BEATAR () INAE 20 B #93,460,231,376% I
BI(=Z — N4 : 3,020,884,0000% 3 % -
PR AR R TE B ARE AR IR FHE -

during the year.
GOODWILL 16. B &
HK$’000
FAT
Cost AR
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RNZE—RF—H—B - ZZF—R F
31 December 2017 +—A=t+—HER=_ZE—t&+=A
=+—H 679,104
Accumulated impairment losses REPREREE
As at 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZE—R"F—A—RB Z2—R%F
31 December 2017 +—A=+—HERZ=ZE—+&+=A
=+—H (679,104)
Carrying amounts BRMEE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=H=1—H -
At 31 December 2016 N e o e = -
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HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

120

Notes:

Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries New Beida
Business Study Net Group Limited is HK$647,598,000 on 27
February 2008.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries, IIN Medical (BVI)
Group Limited (“IIN Medical (BVI)”) and its subsidiaries on 23
April 2009.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of non-controlling interests
of Hunan IIN Medical Network Technology Development
Company Limited, a subsidiary of IIN Medical (BVI), in May
2009.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of i and iii is HK$31,506,000.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Acquisition of New Beida Business Study
Net Group Limited (“New Beida”)

As at the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group
had performed an impairment testing of goodwill
arose on acquisition of New Beida with reference to a
valuation carried out by LCH (Asia — Pacific) Surveyors
Limited (“LCH”), an independent qualified valuer. As
New Beida sustained a negative cash flow for the
year ended 31 December 2009 and such position
was expected to continue in the foreseeable future,
the directors of the Company were of the opinion that
the income approach was inappropriate to reflect the
value of New Beida as at 31 December 2009. The
asset-based approach had been adopted for the
valuation for the year ended 31 December 2009, as
opposed to the valuation carried out by LCH for the
year ended 31 December 2008 where the income
approach was adopted. Based on the business
valuation, the Group had recognised an impairment
loss of HK$326,115,000 in relation to goodwill arose
on acquisition of New Beida for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: HK$321,483,000). As a
result, the goodwill arose on acquisition of New Beida
was identified to be fully impaired.

16. FE @
S

i. BEDN-ZBENE-_A -+t B KENRE
AEFEAEBEREEERAGTNEL A
647,598,000/ 7T °

i BEMR-ETAFNA—+=AKREHE
2 EE A EBVIEEAR A ([ HAEE
BV RAMBA TR EE -

FE DR TN FHAWRBEFEZEBV)Z

MEA T — R EABEEERNERAEERA
B2 IR B A A

PR TH AU B iR E A+ 31,506,000/ 7T ©

Gk AR
i WEFIEAEEEEERAE(H
2

BE_ZTNE+-_A=+—HILEE -
REBE2EB LA ERIGERMFBEITA
AR AR FEITFAIEZEE
HETT R UK B 3T A0 K P EE A e B Ry R DA
Ao BRI ARBE_ZTNF+_A
“t+t-HLEFERHESRSATSRE
MR TEER R Al B AR RADAFFE - AR
RIESERA  WAETES RMFIEAR
—EENFFT A=+ BZEE-BE
BEEZERMERBEZ_ZETNEF+=
A=T—BIEFEZHBERE mMH§E
TARBEZZEZENF+ZA=1+—H
LIEEFERAUANEHETTIE(E - B L2
BHE AEBREE_TThF+=A
—t+—HIEFEBRAEBERKEFILX
M2 A 7 8 2 B B 5 783826,115,000% 7T
—ZZT)\F ¢ 321,483,000/ 70) ALt
RAWEHNIEAMEEZAECRAESR
HURE °
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

ii.

Acaquisition of IIN Medical (BVI)

As at the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group
has performed an impairment testing of goodwill arose
on acquisition of [IN Medical (BVI) with reference to
a valuation carried out by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, based on cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets for the next five years
with a discount rate of 17.83%. The directors of the
Company were of the opinion, based on the business
valuation, that there the Group had recognised an
impairment loss of HK$31,506,000 in relation to
goodwill arose from the acquisition of [IN Medical (BVI)
as at 31 December 2010. As a result, the goodwill of
HK$31,506,000 on acquisition of IIN Medical (BVI) was
identified to be fully impaired.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been
determined on the basis of value-in-use calculation.
The key factors for the value-in-use calculation are
discount rates, growth rates and expected changes in
revenue and direct costs. Capital Asset Pricing Model
has been adopted to estimate the discount rate by
using market data of other companies with business
similar to IIN Medical (BVI). The growth rate is based
on the historical Consumer Price Index of the PRC.
Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past
performance of IIN Medical (BVI) and management’s
expectation of the market development.

16. &%)
BHERERRE)

ii.

W ig B a7, B8 22 (BVI)

HE-_T-TF+_A=+—HILFE"
AEBE2RPBFEBARATEDL 2@
B st EWEENE BV MEE 2 HE
BITRERR - BRAEEDRBE SR
RAFHBTEE (REIRF17.83%) M#ETT
ZHEeMEEANET ARBEERAE
RIRZEBHE  AEBEHR T —F
F+_A=Zt+—AREKRETNEEBY)
M EE A 2 7 B FE 7R R (B E5 831,506,000
PETT o Ft - UL EE B AN B BE(BVI) T E A
2 79231,506,000/8 L E R A E 2 EUR
B

BEZARESHECREREETEE
EEE -ERABEMNEZTERZR NS
NREBERAZBRER BREENBHE
B ERNEETBERACERM  AFA
HEABEAEBVIRERUEB < EB A
BlZ TSI IRE - BRERTIER
FEZEBEHEMERSGE - R hE
BERARZ 28 HRIEENEEBV)2 B
EXRRLEEBHMERRZIREME
Ho
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HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. 9% - BMERZE
EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HHCHER
HEMERE BLERE AE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TERT T#Ex FER FTER
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 998 13,977 7,361 22,336
Additions nE - 93 696 789
Disposal mE - (36) (5,952) (5,988)
Exchange realignment i 5 A - (291) @7 (318)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=A
=+—H 998 13,743 2,078 16,819
Additions NE 1,700 149 7,000 8,849
Exchange realignment [E 5 - 372 35 407
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A
=+—H 2,698 14,264 9,113 26,075
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. % - BERZE®

EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HM-RER
HEMERE BRLERE AE @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FTHERT THET THET FHERT
Accumulated depreciation and ZETERRE
impairment
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RFE—HA—H 998 13,575 2,263 16,836
Charge for the year FREHE - 128 1,161 1,289
Disposal e - (20) (2,381) (2,401)
Exchange realignment I& & % - (284) (22) (306)
At 31 December 2016 R=ZB—X"E+=A
=+—H 998 13,399 1,021 15,418
Charge for the year FREHE 250 123 1,658 2,031
Exchange realignment i A - 364 34 308
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=A
=+—H 1,248 13,886 2,713 17,847
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 December 2017 WZZE—+F+-A
=+—H 1,450 378 6,400 8,228
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"EF+=A
=t+—H - 344 1,057 1,401
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HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

18.

124

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. IR EHE N T
2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January n—A—H 50,000 -
Reclassification to investment held for sale BN EERELERE (50,000) -
Addition 0 89,880 50,000
Share of profits DEER T 6,009 -
Exchange realignment M 5 B 5,854 -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 101,743 50,000
Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 December 2017 RZFE—tFF+ZA=T—AFXKEHER
are as follows: AlFFHINT
% of
Place of business/country ownership Measurement
Name of entity ofincorporation Principal activities interest method
TEER e AMRLYE FEER EEEOL HEIE
Shares held indirectly:
B A 2R
Beijing Youli Lianxu Technology Co., Ltd. PRC e-commerce business 49% Equity
EREDEBRAR AR FE ETREBER A
Set out below are the summarised financial information of an IRREEAEREY — B2 R 2B EMHER
associate which is accounted for using quity method. o
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(Continued)

Summarised balance sheet

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. REWPZE N7 (&)

BREEERER

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FET
Current B
Cash and cash equivalents R MESEHEER 6,792
Current assets (excluding cash and cash equivalents)  RBIEE(TEIEESRRSZHEER) 88,416
Total current assets BB EE 95,208
Current liabilities D UN=NE 69,997
Non-current E15 e
Assets BE 836
Net assets FEE 26,047
Revenue g 65,757
Expenses b3 (53,515)
Profit for the year FRE A 12,242
Loss attributable to non controlling interest of the el Wl NP NTET B 2y g =
associate’s subsidiary 20
Total profit for the year attributable to the associate B N R E(EF E R T 4858 12,262

There were no commitment and contingent liabilities relating

RZB—+F+A=+—H AEER—M

to the Group’s interests in an associate as at 31 December LN o F 1 3 FE S Y VIR A == I

2017.

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017

125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT HELD FOR SALE 19. B EHERE
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Associate held for sale BIEHERE 38,000 -
38,000 -
As at 1 January m—HA—A 50,000 -
Addition nNE - 50,000
Impairment BB (12,000) -
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 38,000 50,000
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19. INVESTMENT HELD FOR SALE

(Continued)

In March 2018, the directors of China E-Information
Technology Group Limited decided to sell 45% of shares of
the associate Business Harbour Limited which was originally
acquired for an expansion of the subsidiary Million Forever
Limited. The asset is presented within total assets of the
Million Forever Limited.

On 23 March, 2018, the group entered into an agreement
pursuant to which the seller Million Forever Limited agreed
to sell the 45% shares of Business Harbour Limited to
the original seller Happy Leisure Corp. which offered to
repurchase the shares at a consideration of HK$38 million
satisfied by cash. Directors of the Company regarded this as
an adjustment event according to HKAS 10 and reclassified
the investment in associate as investment held for sale.
According to HKFRS 5, asset held for sale shall be measured
at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Since the sales proceeds was HK$ 38 million which
was the fair value and costs to sell are considered to be
insignificant, an impairment loss of HK$ 11.64 million was
provided accordingly. However, since the original seller
waived the contingent consideration of HK$ 10 million, a
gain of waiver of such payable of HK$ 10 million is also
recognised. The net effect of HK$ 1,640,000 was included in
other losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

19. HEHERE®)

RZZE-—N\F=ZA FEBKEERNEER
ERAREERE D E B Z A 7Business
Harbour Limited (R 1 4 740 & K 8 2 &Million
Forever Limited) Z45%% {7 ° 5% & = #Million
Forever Limited 2 8 & EN 27 -

RZE-N\F=ZHAZ+=H AKEFTLEE
% ¥ It & HMillion Forever Limited[d &
M R & J7Happy Leisure Corp.it #Business
Harbour Limited,Z 45%0% 15 + MHappy Leisure
Corp.[A E LA (B A K ¥38,000,0007% 7T (AR
SHEE)ELRG - BIBEB B G EAE 105K
RRAREEZHEEREEIE  TEREER
AREEFOBRFIELHERE - RIBEEHY
B EERES  FHEHEEERIKZERE
BEAFERLEEN RN 2BEETE - AR E
& F7 15 X 1838,000,0007% 7T (B 45 A FE K it
ERA)EEBTEXR  WEHRAEEERE
11,640,000/8 7T © AT - BRIRE T R IAR
{&10,000,000/ 7T, + 4 o 7% 55 JE 1 5/ 18 2 Wz
10,000,00078 7L IR 2 #ER2. » 5 %2 £ 1,640,00078
TLEFT ARG EBEmEX 2 HAvEE -
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19. INVESTMENT HELD FOR SALE

128

(Continued)

(i)

Financial performance information (i)

The financial performance information of Business
Habour for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
2016 presented as below:

19.FEHERE

Business Habourgi & —E—+F K - &
—ANF+ZA=+T—HIEFEZFEEX
REREMNOT :

2017 2016

—E—+F ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Revenue WA - -
Expenses F (800) -
Loss before income tax BRET1S iR ES1E (800) -
Income tax expense Fr{SHiF 2 - -
Loss for the year FNGE (800) -
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20. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

20. RS RNRE

RECEIVABLE
2017 2016
—2—+tF ZERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Contingent consideration receivable FEWESARAE 520 -

References are made to the announcements dated 11 and
24 QOctober 2016 issued by the Company in relation to the
acquisition of 49% equity interest in Beijing Youli Lianxu
Technology Company Limited (“Beijing Youli”). Pursuant
to the sales and purchases agreement, the consideration
payable to the vendors shall be HK$91,581,000 subject to
adjustments as follows:

If Beijing Youli fails to meet the 2017 Profit Target(being the
net profit after tax of Beijing Youli for the period from 1 April
2017 to 31 March 2018 in the amount of HK$12,600,000),
the consideration will be reduced in accordance with the
following formula:

Amount to be deducted from the consideration = (2017
Profit Target — 2017 Actual Profit) x 15 x 51% x 40%.

In respect of the aforesaid reduction in consideration, the
maximum amount to be reduced shall not exceed 40% of
the consideration in any event.

ZRRBARFTNRZT—REFEFTA+—BEK
ZTMBFEZAE  AREBRUBEILREN
BRI AR AR 1L RE N 1) 49%R% 4
RIEE B A E AR EA91,581,000%
T AIVERA TR -

WL RENAREER S — &5 F B2
BEZRARR - E—+FWNA—HE_ZT—N\F
= A=+—BHREMR & 45 F12,600,000/5
TT) REBEIZRA T AR ¢

HREMBHSE=(—E—+tF5MNEEZ—=
T FEEEF)x 15 x51% x 40%
BEARERLTE  BOHOESSELIER
BN T EBBREMNI0% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE-T

20.

130

—tF+ A=t -HLFE

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE (continued)

If the Target Company fails to meet the 2018 Profit Target
(being the net profit after tax of Beijing Youli for the period
from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 in the amount of
HK$15,120,000;), the Consideration will be reduced in
accordance with the following formula:

Amount to be deducted from the consideration = (2018
Profit Target — 2018 Actual Profit) x 15 x 51% x 20%.

In respect of the aforesaid reduction in Consideration, the
maximum amount to be reduced shall not exceed 20% of
the Consideration in any event.

As disclosed in the announcements dated 25 April 2017
issued by the Company, the Convertible Notes in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$91,581,000 have been
issued to the vendors. Since at the date of completion
of the acquisition, the amounts of the reductions in
consideration are contingent, the Group recognised a
contingent consideration receivable at date of completion
of the acquisition. The contingent consideration receivables
were initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at fair value with changes recognised in profit
or loss. In determining the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable, management considers the
probability of meeting the 2017 and 2018 Profit Target
based on the historical information and profit forecast. As
at the date of completion, management determined the
fair value of contingent consideration at HK$1,700,000. As
at 31 December 2017, management reassessed the fair
value of contingent consideration and determined it as HK$
520,000. Accordingly, a HK$ 1,180,000 was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2017, management has performed a
sensitivity analysis on the key variable, being the probability,
a 10% change will lead to a change of HK$510,000 on the
fair value of the contingent consideration receivable. The
discount rate used in the assessment is 4.90%.

CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -

20. B AKRE =

WMEZARREER T — \FH5F 8Z
BEZARR-ZE—N\FONA—HZE_ZT—NF
= A=+— B HEMRkRT&45115,120,000/%8
L) REBZRBATARRD

BB SE=(ZE— \FRMNEEZE——
T—\FEBEEF)x 15 x 51% x 20%

?ﬁitﬁ%}ﬁd‘ MmE RPN RSEEEER
BRI TERBERERN20% °
BOARRTNE 2B/ T —LFMOA

THRAZAEEE - ZIKMME91 ,581,000
BRI RREEBRERITTES - ARRTEK
WEAH REZINRSEBRA  REERST
PX R 5 B BATER FE WSk AR (B - RIS AR(E
MR AFEER  EERATETE XA
BHRBRAER NETERKARBZA

FER BEEENFE S ER K FTENZ R
FEZZT—tFR T \FEFEIZZ A4

MoNEXBE  EREETIAREZAFE
£1,700,0008 L - RZE—+F+_A=+—
A EEEERIAREBEZATFTELEETEAR
520,0007% 7T ° A It * 1,180,0008 L E &R &

R_Z—+F+_A=+—HB EEEBHIE
SRR A1) ETTBURE AT 10%

B i B B B AN RE A T “@Jmoooo,%
TC o AHE P A BIBRIR K B4.90% ©

TEAKEENREEERAR



21. OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. H b EUARTK

2017 2016

—E—tF —TREF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Deposits and other receivables =& R H A IR 136,175 145,225
Deferred expenses EEFMA 7,254 -
Prepayments TERTRIE 2,708 11,166
Less: impairment losses W REEBE (68,898) (71,341)
77,239 85,050

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s other

receivables were individually determined to be impaired.

The individually impaired receivables are recognised based
on the credit history of debtors, such as financial difficulties
or default in payments, and current market conditions. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

RERE R - ANEE 2 B A YR TS {E B
BEREHZRIE - @RI E 2 B KA TR
BEBAZEE (B BN 2 sk 8 R 508 )
FRIRITHRER - AREL BIAXFEHRITE
EAE R

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017 131



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. Hitt B ER &)
The movement for provision of impairment of other BREMEWICERERE T

receivables is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January ®—H—H 71,341 12,100
Impaired DRI - 60,887
Reversed 7 (2,975) -
Exchange realignment HE 5 5 R 532 (1,646)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 68,898 71,341
22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 22 FEREREBAFENEZSHE
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR BE
LOSS
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
Listed securities LIRS
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — BB LR ES 565 7,952
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24

23. e RIREEEEE

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx FHT

Bank balances RITAE 20,741 51,121

Cash balances B ik 26 7
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated 4AIRERERMNIRE KL

statement of cash flow ReEEIEE 20,767 51,128

Cash and cash equivalents of appr oximately
HK$15,166,000 (2016: HK$12,614,000) for the Group are
denominated in Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the exchange control imposed by the PRC
government.

Deposits with banks are interest bearing at the prevailing
market rates.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

AEBECHSRE4ZEIAER 415,166,000

TE(ZZ—7F 1 12,614,000 70) JHAA R

HE  MAREWIEAHLIBLER A BEREN
B K B R B SR O 7N I 3R PR o

RITERIRIRITHIGH KB

24. EZ K HAES R

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHER FET

Trade payables B S IR 145 543
Other payables EAtb ETRIR 5,166 14,040
Receipt in advance TEURIE 18,136 16,042
Accrued charges EETE A 4,883 1,935
28,330 32,560
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24.

25

134

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
reporting period is as follows:

24. B 5 R H R IR

B RNEFRBEMRZRESNAOT

2017 2016

—E—t5F ZE—RF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Within 30 days 30HMA - 468
31 to 60 days 31H60ZE HH - -
61 to 90 days 61H90ZE HfE - -
Over 90 days BiE0H 145 75
145 543

The average credit period on cost of goods sold and
services provided is 1-3 months. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the credit timeframe.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had estimated
the unused tax losses of approximately HK$41,719,000
(2016: HK$59,629,000 ) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax assets have been recognised
in respect of such losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The Group has tax losses arising
in Hong Kong of approximately HK$15,837,000 (2016:
HK$15,837,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in the PRC of
approximately HK$25,882,000 (2016: HK$43,792,000) that
will expire in one to five years for offsetting against future
taxable profits.

HEEMMRERE 2K AZ FHEEH A
Z23fAA - AKE D E Y BRREZRE A
R 2B RN RIENMEEREMRRER -

25, JRIERIIH

RERE B BATER  AEBEGEET A REHEER
Mo R 2 R 8 B R IB B 18 40 /A41,719,00078
To(ZZF — X 1 59,629,000 7T ) > B & BE
TERI R HORE AR - O Bz S BB RE
ERIBEE ASEBREBEE ZBHIARBELY
15,837,000/ jt( — & — /X £ : 15,837,000/
J) AR IR HRR S E A BB 2 AR 2 R R FE
IR K ©

AREEE A B E A 2 R IE E5 18 4925,882,000/%8
TT(ZZF—7R%F : 43,792,000 ) Al —E R
F N VE S R SR B AR T s A o
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 25, JEFE R IH (#0)

Deferred taxation IERER IE

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised IUNTAEREEUANBAEFTERRAZ T EREM

and movements thereon during the current and prior years: THEENEEE
2017 2016
—E—+tE ZTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
At the beginning of the year £ - -
Recognition upon issue of convertible note  2%17 A A % B2 15 B R 9,819 -
Release upon conversion of convertible note  #2#a A 44 A% Z= 15 85 4 [a] (3,928) -
At the end of the year FR 5,891 -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R
The Group and the Company AEERAANT
Number of
shares  Share capital
R EE [N
Notes HK$’000
Po5E BT
Authorised: SERE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 RA-ZE—_F—A—H -—=&
and 31 December 2017 —RNE+-A=1+—Bk=
T—+F+-A=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FEECAE T T 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BITREE :
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each EFREEC.SE Tz LiEmik 2,945,103,196 294,510
Issue of shares by exercised of of share  E{T{FEEEARE MBI TARD
options share options a 169,400,000 16,940
b 190,476,190 19,048
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XxF+=-A=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each EREEIBTZEER 3,304,979,386 330,498
Issue of shares by exercised of share EI TR M 21 TR (D
options 107,000,000 10,700
Issue of shares by conversion of R iR A R AE =R 31 TRY D
convertible notes 153,917,647 15,392
At 31 December 2017 R=ZB—tF+=-A=+—H
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEIBITZ2EER 3,565,897,033 356,590
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26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 107,000,000
share options were exercised by holder to subscribe for
107,000,000 shares. Details of the share options during the
year are set out in note 34.

(b) During the year, the Company issued 153,917,647 shares
upon conversion of shares by the holders of the convertible
notes.

(a)

The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 67 of the annual report.

26. IR A (@)

@ NEE-_F-—tF+-A=1+-HLF
£ #F A 17 1£107,000,0005 §8 A 4 33 B8
107,000,0008% i 17 © 4F 7 8 R 4 = 18 B0 P
T34 -

(o)  FA-ARERITRBREEFTE ABIRRDE
2%17153,917,647 BLALID ©

27. #1E
(a) &~&£HE
KREERAGEEAEBEEY RER

HEPNFRECTAZGAESEEHRK
eV
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27. RESERVES (Continued)

27. f#s @)

(b) The Company (b) &ATF]
Share-based Convertible
Share payment note equity Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
TEREE
RAEE W ikt EafE ZiTEE &t
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
it ThL Thr T ThL Thr
At 1 January 2016 RZE—F
-A-H 208,254 30,544 - (297,816) (39,018
Total comprehensive loss for the year  AEEZEER
Foke - - - (91,193 (91,193)
Issue of convertible notes BTBRER 27 - - 1174 - 1174
Issue of share option BiTRIRE 3B - 34575 - - 34575
Issue of shares by exercised of share  RTEIEIiE
option [ik<6r 0 3 38,541 (8,049) - - 30492
Isste of new shares ESEDI 20,952 - - - 20,952
31 December 2016 and RIE-RE
1 January 2017 +ZA=1+-A
k=%-t%
—-F-H 287,747 57,070 1174 (389,009) (43,018
Total comprehensive loss for the year  AEE2EER
Feke - - - (147,683) (147,683)
Redemption of convertiblenotes BRI HRER - - (1,174) 1,174 -
Issue of convertible notes ?ﬁffﬂ}ﬁﬂxi‘fﬁ% 27 - - 59,511 - 59,511
Deferred tax iabilty on recognion of - B ERT 2k 2
equity component EitiEaE - - (9,819) - (9819
Issue of share option BIERE 33 - 28,905 - - 28,905
Issue of shares by exercised of share  RTEREiE
option mEIRG 33 2,207 (7,022 - - 16,185
Issue of new shares upon conversion of NER AT ER
convertiole notes BETHTRR 21,829 - (23,805) - (1,976)
Deferred tax liabilty released upon ~ REATHEREES
conversion of convertible note BEEERERR - - 3,928 - 3028
At 31 December 2017 i
T-A=1t-H 332,183 78,953 29,815 (535,518) (93,967)

138 CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -

TEAKEENREEERAR



27. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the excess
of the nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium account of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation over the nominal value of
the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association,
the share premium of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. At 31 December 2017, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have
any reserve available for distribution to shareholders
(2016: Nil).

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of share options granted which are yet to
be exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in note
34 1o the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when
the related options are exercised, or be transferred to
accumulate losses should the related options expire or
be forfeited.

27. @)
(b) AAT @)

AEBENREEREEEEANIE 2 KB
DA Z BAREE R E ERRE AR R B
BITZRAHEZER

REMSFESRRVENARAEBEIZMAE
MR EERKREE BR AARBRNER
REEEBHRIE2EER QAR F A RKR
DERBGDEE - RZT—CtF+A=+—
B ARBEFEFR/ARE LA A AR
DR (T —RF : E)o

MBS BRI D R EE R ARTTE 2 BAE
ZHE 7 BB AR MY 348 B AR A
R 52 TR - ERRBREETE AR
B ERARDRER FABERER MK
1ERE - R BB ARG B -
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The movement of the convertible notes for the year is set out

28. AR IR EE
THBRERERNEBRATX:

below:
Liability Equity
component component Total
=i B st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT FAT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016 R =—Z—FE—A—HZER
A& - - -
Issuance of new notes BITHERE 8,827 1,174 10,001
Effective interest expense BERMNEMX 569 - 569
Carrying amount RZE—RF+ZA=+—
at 31 December 2016 HZEREE 9,396 1,174 10,570
Redemption of notes BEOEEE (10,000) (1,174) (11,174)
Issuance of new notes BT EE 32,070 59,511 91,581
Deferred tax liability upon R A AR E IR R S B o BT
recognition of equity component  ZiELEFIBEE
of convertible note - (9,819) (9,819)
Effective interest expense EBRENEMXZ 6,370 - 6,370
Conversion of convertible notes BRI R IR (13,416) (23,805) (37,221)
Deferred tax liability upon IR TR SRR 2 RER
conversion of convertible note BEE - 3,928 3,928
Carrying amount RZE—tF+=A=+—
at 31 December 2017 H 2 REE 24,420 29,815 54,235
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

2011 D Convertible notes

On 14 September 2011, the Company issued 3% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN 2011 D”), the principal terms of
the CN 2011 D are as follows:

Date of issue 14 September 2011
Aggregate principal amount  HK$22,500,000
Interest rate 3%

Conversion price HK$0.50

Maturity date 12 months from the date of

issue

On 6 March 2014, the Company has redeemed one of
the Convertible Notes 2011 D with the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 in accordance with notice from the holder.
The Company is contacting the holder of the Convertible
Notes 2011 D with the principal amount of HK$2,800,000
in order to settle the convertible notes. As at 31 December
2016, the Company has not received any reply or notice
from the holder and the Company has the funds available
for redemption. Therefore the Company has accrued such
amount of HK$2,800,000 together with its interest accrued
at the year ended 31 December 2016.

2012 EICN Convertible notes

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “EICN”), the principal terms of the
EICN are as follows:

Date of issue 20 December 2012
Aggregate principal amount HK$58,235,956

Interest rate 1%
Conversion price HK$0.50
Maturity date 36 months from the date of

issue

28. AR RE @

—ZE——FEaRRELED

RZB——FAATHBE ARFETES
RN MR RE(I T ——FAARER
D)) —F——F A RIRFEEDN T BN T

ITHER —ZE——&%hA+WA
PINE 22,500,0005 7T

B 3%

HARE 0.50% 7T

/e = BE/THER12(E A

R-ZZE—NE=ZAXB ARFRBREFHFAA
@A fE | A £ #610,000,0008 T 2 = &
—— F O RBRERD - NN B EAEE NS EE
2,800,000 L2 —E——F A MR EBEDZIF
EA LEETBRBRER -RZT—RF1+=A
=+—H ARBHAEEREANEMEE
SR MARBEHTERES At AAQ
ARBE_ZT-HF+-_A=+—RHILtEEDE
EE42,800,000/8 LB R FERTFIE. -

TR FENBRREB KRR

BREE

RZE——F+-A=+8 ARQRAIETER

A% A AR 295 ([ SRR Al R I 20 1)
KB AR E IR E ST ¢

1T HHA —E——F+-A—-+H
KAz 58,235,956 7T

B 1%

B E 0.5078 7T

[ = B 277 HHIRRET361E A
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

2012 EICN Convertible notes (Continued)

On 15 August 2014 (after trading hours), the Company
and the note holders of EICN entered into the Deeds of
Amendment, pursuant to which the Company and the
note holders of EICN agreed to amend certain terms and
conditions of EICN. Pursuant to the Deeds of Amendment, (i)
the conversion price of EICN will be reduced from HK$0.50
per Share to HK$0.35 per share; and (i) the interest rate of
EICN will be reduced from 1% per annum to zero. Save as
amended pursuant to the Deeds of Amendment, all other
terms of EICN shall remain unchanged and valid.

On 15 October 2014, the resolution in relation to the
proposed amendment to the terms and conditions of EICN
was duly passed by the independent shareholders by way of
poll at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting.

On 27 October 2014, the Amendment of Terms has become
effective. The updated terms of EICN are as follow:

Date of issue 20 December 2012
Aggregate principal amount HK$58,235,956
Aggregate principal amount  HK$58,235,956

as at 27 October 2014

Interest rate 0%

Adjusted conversion price  HK$0.35

Maturity date 36 months from the date of
issue

The incremental consideration resulted form adjustment
to conversion price amounting to HK$26,456,000 have
been recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2014.

28. AR RE @

- FARREB KRR AT
S A

RZZE—MENATHEB(XSEEE) AR
A Bk LB R PT A IR RIB AR IS B ART M (8E]
B BRIt AR R ROK SRR AT R E R R
%ﬁAﬁﬁ%RMlWT#%mF%¥ﬁﬁ
RAFHEITIEET « ARIBISFT IR - ()RR AT
h%%@k%%ﬁﬁh&%%ﬁ%iik&%
%ﬁ'&®ﬁmlWTﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%mi¢W6
BRET - RIRBISETIBRFTIEZ IS RTUASN - Sk 8
BIFR AR IR R IR T A B R T IR T E R E
e

RT—mE+A+ER  RHEETAEER
TRIRER 2 R R E R R D
TRERARAREEBIAE LURERARS
HIERBIA -

RZZE—WF+AZ+EB BEEREE
B o K BRI RN B 2 AC T BTSN T ¢

HITHH —E——#+=-A=+H
PG ¥ L 58,235,956/ 7C
RZZT—M4F 58,235,956/ 7T
+A=++RZ
PiNG R G
BX 0%
KRARBRIRE 0.35% 7T
i B 317 H AT 361E A

HE-_ZT-—NF+-_A=+—HILFE &F
BN (E E 4 2 KRB 1126,456,00078 T E R
B NHER
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

2012 EICN Convertible notes (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Conversion period

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of the
note in an amount of not less than HK$500,000
on each conversion (save that if an at time, the
principal outstanding amount of the note is less than
HK$500,000, the whole (but not part only) of the
principal outstanding amount of the notes may be
converted) into shares in board lot or multiples thereof
at any time from the issue date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.35 per share up to (and excluding) the
fifth business day immediately before the maturity
date.

Issuer early redemption option

The Company may at its sole and absolute discretion
redeem the Notes (or any part thereof) at its principal
amount outstanding together with interest at any time
and from time to time on or before the notes maturity
date.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of EICN as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$48,872,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate based
on the discount rate of 7.79%.

The noteholders converted EICN in the principal amount
of HK$35,000,000 on 30 October 2014. The noteholder
converted EICN in the principal amount of HK$13,235,956
on 16 December 2014. EICN in the principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 was matured on 20 December 2015.

28. AR RE @

- FARREB KRR AT
S A

(a) HIBHIE

EERBABEREBRITHEEERRE
HEHHAMERELEER(TREZB)
] B FIE S R0.35 8 LA V1P PR (B 15
ZREBHREMIBHREERSER
BRE—FREFRG  BRALBREENER
BiEALEE NP H500,00078 7T (MHEMRH
EREFMITRBRERNAEEASE D
#500,000/% 7T+ Bl AT W3R Al R SR i 2.
2E(MIEE—HD ) REELALRE)-

(b) RITAIEFECIEZERE

AR R ARRIZR RN H B 2z A i
RARARREERSERNE2ER
BERRE(HEMBO TR

(c) BESDZMEE

R-ZE——F+=-A=+8 KEBERA]
% ZE 15 B A HE A48,872,00078 7T © /A
Wﬁ)}@ﬁﬁ ~ X HRANET 79%H BAER &

RZZE—WFE+A=1+H ZBFE ALK
24 [ % A] 2% 32 9 /) 7K & 835,000,000/ 7T ©
RZZE—WF+ZA+ B EERBALR
X BB R AT #A AR SR B A AN & $813,235,956%8
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
CN2018 Convertible notes

On 13 January 2016, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible notes (the “CN2018”), the principal terms of the
CN2018 are as follows:

Date of issue 13 January 2016
Aggregate principal amount  HK$10,000,000
Interest rate -

Conversion price HK$0.35
Maturity date 24 months from the date of
issue

(a) Conversion period

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of the
note in an amount of not less than HK$500,000
on each conversion (save that if an at time, the
principal outstanding amount of the note is less than
HK$500,000, the whole (but not part only) of the
principal outstanding amount of the notes may be
converted) into shares in board lot or multiples thereof
at any time from the issue date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.35 per share up to (and excluding) the
fifth business day immediately before the maturity
date.

(b) Issuer early redemption option

The Company may at its sole and absolute discretion
redeem the notes (or any part thereof) at its principal
amount outstanding together with interest at any time
and from time to time on or before the notes maturity
date.

28. AR EE &
—E-\FURRERE
RoB-A%F—A+ZH AAABGTRES

TR ER( T - N\FABREER])
—N\EFABRRERN T EERET

ZITHER —E—XF—A+=H
PINE 10,000,000 7T
B

HRE 0.35% 7T

Elpziil= B 2377 HHEIR 2418 A

(a) HBAE

EEFBABENERITABEERRE
FNEEHEREE ¥R (TREZB)
T 85 RIE B RR0.35 8 LM W1 A (B 15
REEMBREABLREELSENL
BE—FAEFRN  BRABREERR
BEASEENDHB500,0008 7T » (KRR
FRAEFEATRRERNREERNSE D
F%wow%ﬁva%%T%%%%z
EB(MIEE D) RERRSH) -

(b) RITAEFREEIEERE

ARRRARRZRENE H 3z AT i
RABAEREERNSERNEZER
BB ERER (HEMBORE)
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
CN2018A Convertible notes (Continued)
(c) Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN2018 as at 13 January 2016
amounted to HK$9,739,776. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate based
on the discount rate of 9.54%.

CN2020 Convertible notes

On 25 April 2017, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible notes (the “CN2020”), the principal terms of the
CN2020 are as follows:

Date of issue 25 April 2017
Aggregate principal amount  HK$91,581,000
Interest rate -

Conversion price HK$0.238
Maturity date 36 months from the date of
issue

(a) Conversion period

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of the
note in an amount of not less than HK$500,000
on each conversion (save that if an at time, the
principal outstanding amount of the note is less than
HK$500,000, the whole (but not part only) of the
principal outstanding amount of the notes may be
converted) into shares in board lot or multiples thereof
at any time from the issue date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.238 per share up to (and excluding)
the fifth business day immediately before the maturity
date.

28. AR ELE @)
TE-NEUBRRERE#E)
(c) BEHS7zZ1EE

TE-N\FUBEREBER T —RF—
A+=ZB®ARAFEAET739,776/E T A
TR THE A = XA R A $720.54% /9 BE IR 2R

.
Al °

—ECEFURRER

RZZB—tFOA-+HRA ARAETE
ERENARRER(_Z_FFAHRER
Bl —E-TFABMERENTIZHZOT

1THE —E—+FMA-+HH
PINE 91,581,000/ 7T

B -

HARE 0.238/& 7T,

e = B %77 B B 51 361E A

(a) HBAE

EEFBABENERITABEERRE
FEEHEREE ¥R (TREZB)
T ] B R 42 S 1% 0.23878 ST K ¥ 1R iR (B
BREZEPREMTHREERNSE
HBRAB—FHUEFRG  BXABREED
FEEARSF N D H500,0007 7T + (M fi
REMEETRBREENREERNSEE
4> 74500,00078 7T + R AT 5 A] AR =%
22 (MIEE B ) REELSEE)-
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28. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

CN2020 Convertible notes (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Issuer early redemption option

The Company may at its sole and absolute discretion
redeem the notes (or any part thereof) at its principal
amount outstanding together with interest at any time
and from time to time on or before the notes maturity
date.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN2020 as at 25 April 2017
amounted to HK$91,581,000 of which the fair value
of the debt component and call option together
is HK$32,070,000. The debt component and call
option are included in the liability component of the
convertible notes. The fair value is calculated using
binomial tree models at a rate based on the discount
rate of 9.46%.

The noteholders converted CN2020 in the principal
amount of HK$36,632,400 on 15 May 2017.

29. COMMITMENTS

146

(a)

Capital commitments

Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the
end of the reporting period but not recognised as
liabilities is as follows:

28. AR ELE @)
S_EFNBRRERE®E)

(b) RITAEFHEEIEERE
AR B AR RIRBHI A 52 ATE (AT
RABLEREEASERFE 2 ER
BB R (KRB RE)

(c) BESHZ2EE
CECEFBRBRERR T —tFMWm
ﬂ:-i—iiEIE’\J’AIFTE?%m 581,000/ 7T
HpEBHo RRESHEA FHEC./\
/£32,070,000/8 7T » (&7 28 M 7R R B i
ARBRERRERECBEDD - /‘ﬂ?fﬁ?ﬂ%
Fl = IR RN29.46% K BEIR R+ & -

RZF—EHFRA+HA FERFAA
AT _THEARBRERN A H
36,632,400/ 7T °

29, & IE
(a) BEAREE

NRERRETNEAERAEEBEZE
EARR T

2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Commitment to provide funding for joint ~ [A]& & A FIEHE S 7 HdE
venture’s capital 43,226 -
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29. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of office premises and other asset, which fall due as

20, i)
(b) AT EB AL

R B aE  REERPATY L
REMEE FTRBEEBROFES
RAB IR E BB R T

follows:
2017 2016
—g—tF T AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 5,640 4,302
In the second to fifth years inclusive FIEERF(BREERMTE) 5,610 1,296
11,250 5,598

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms
of 1to 3 years (2016: 1 to 2 years).

HODNE—2=F(ZFT—RF: —E-F)2
FHARER M EAR -
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30.

31

32.

148

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have materially contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period (2016: Nil).

PLEDGED OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group’s
assets (2016: Nil) were pledged to secure the Group’s
banking facilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have
been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note.

Unless otherwise disclosed in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not enter into any material
related party transactions during the year and did not have
any material balances with related parties at the end of the
reporting period.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year are disclosed in the note 12 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The group also identified other related party as below.

30.

31.

32.

HAREE

RBEMR AERERBEREEAIARE(Z
T—RFE)e

=

EEEHA

NREPR  AREMEEE(ZT— R F: &)
EEMEAARBERITEEZER

BELRS

ARBEEMNBE AR (EAARRR Z/E)H
ZRERR R GREERE Y - WENAMKE
R

SR FRAMBREMBEEIN ARERF
I

W MAEMERRBET RS ARHRE
REARFE T WAL EAAEERR

FRAEEREERTIEEEEZEMKEZ
M &R A B S REKMEE12 -

R BT ARI A RRE T I o

Ownership interest

FREfERER
Name Type Place of incorporation
H18 kit SEF AR 3L 3t B 2017 2016
Beijing Youli Lianxu Technology Associate PRC 49% -
Company Limited 1t 518 /7 Fkl/NG] H

BB AR AR
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32.BERFXRZ @)

(Continued)

Transactions with related parties are shown below:

BEIENET IR BIIRIAT ¢

Loans to an associate BENTRERK
2017 2016
—2-tF —
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FAT
Beginning of the year F4 - 1,981
Loans advanced FERER 14,200 -
Interest charged WERFILE, 104 -
End of year FR 14,304 1,981
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33.

150

—tF+ A=t -HLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables, financial derivatives, convertible notes and
other borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in
relation to derivatives are set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
that counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31
December 2017 in relation to each class of recognized
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables. In order to minimise credit risk,
management has certain monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables regularly at each reporting date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are adequately
made for irrecoverable amounts. The credit risk on liquid
funds is limited because the counterparties are commercial
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit- rating agencies. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -
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AEBZIZoRMIAREE S MAMEKER
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SEAENERERRE EEBERI N T X
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s bank deposits. All the deposits are on a floating rate
basis.

The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge
against the interest rate risk. However, the interest rate profile
of the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less any
interest-bearing financial liabilities) is closely monitored by
management.

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points) in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss before tax and accumulated
losses by approximately HK$104,000 (2016: HK$256,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for the non-derivative financial liabilities
in existence at that date. The 50 basis points increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2016.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”), for the years 2017 and
2016. Such exposure arises from one of the Company’s
subsidiary’s intergroup transactions with the Company
and recognised liabilities denominated in HK$ that is not
the functional currency of the subsidiary whose functional
currency is RMB.

3. BEMEERE RBER®

BN

$%l2ﬂfﬂ e T BERBAKBEZRITHF
K e TG AE B RIRGE -

7R 5% [ 3 4 N P 2 B 0T A T AL R B R A R
o R > AEB 2 FR0FB(AIRITERR A
ERFEERAR) ZHXRBRAETEET Y

BESR o
o

RZE—+F+-A=+—8 HHExLE
I I BBOEEE( —F— N4 50EEE)
(FTEEMEERBIIE) BERAEBBRT
AT BT 18 & Rt E5 18 00,8 4 49104,00078 7T
T — X4 1 256,000/ 7T )

Bt 7 BRERE DT TS ERR N IR E B HA R

RESMET BCEARE AFEZIFITE
ERMAEZFIRRER X AT B60MEE
HETHEEBH TFERS B MEAN
RZABAREFEL 2 — T —RNFR
MERIEEETHRBON -

SNEEE L B

RIE—tFR-_ZT-—R"FEFE A&EHA
HNXZUEEBRRIZIRARE(AR
1) ZFRMELBANRF M B AR E
AREETZEBEARFR S REERARE
ETEHE BT FZMB AR ZEE
¥ HENREERR/ARE-
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBEMEERE REER®

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10 basis points (2016: 10 basis
points) in HK$/RMB exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s loss
before tax and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$12,560,000.(2016: HKS$ Nil).

Liquidity risk

For the management of the Group’s liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash and cash
equivalents considered adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation

in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors its working
capital requirements regularly.

The following table details the contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual

SINGEE [ B (48)

Z'KE.EF]JJ:|14}3557|\’¢1‘51Z JJ/EPIEAZ AR EIRER
PERINERR  WERNFTERZEERLFEKX
NS TRLRR o

R_Z—+F&+-_A=+—8" 1&‘:+;%sz@/\
REERLEEF TEHIOEEZH(=F
FA0EEE) B EMEERIFTIE ) Hq%
BN E BT A EIE R 25HEEE N, R A4
12,560,000 7T(ZF—/R4F « THIT)o

/)Ibﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

REBAKBZRBESRAR AREERER
HBRSMREFERENEEERRENZ
K ARAKEXRGRHTEES MRER
EMENDTE - ERES TR REE
HEBEEHK-

TRFHINAEERHREMRNEREBEE O
HER ERABEBRBCITORNRASRE
(BREARTHORRETE 2 M B MAF) BAREE L
A NFRZ P BHEE

rates) and the earliest date the Group can be required to

pay:
More than one  More than two Total
Ondemandor  yearbutless yearsbutless undiscounted Carrying
within one year than two years than five years cash flow amount
EEZX -k MELL FSigstka
B—ER BREUR BREEUR REAR REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL Fidn THEL THT Fin
At 31 December 2017 R=E-t#+=A=t-H
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables B S REMEMAES 28,330 - - 28,330 28,330
Convertible notes THEREE - - 54,949 54,949 24,420
At 31 December 2016 R=E-~EtZA=t-H
Financial liabilities SREE
Trade and other payables L5 REMERER 32,560 - - 32,560 32,560
Convertible notes THREER - 10,000 - 10,000 9,396
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. MKEREERE REEX®
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments £RIA
Categories of financial instruments TRTAZS%E
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
—E—£F ST
+t=ZA=+—HB +tZ-A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets TREE
Fair value though profit or loss BRERERATEHNE
— Held for trading —FEER 565 7,952
Loans and receivables (including cash and ERRERFIE(EFERERES
cash equivalents) %£E1EH) 102,868 118,595
Financial liabilities ==k
Amortised cost BEIHRR 34,615 126,547
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. MKEREERE REEX®
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) @I AE
Fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis BEEMBEETSEZ N FEER
Fair value hierarchy as at 31/12/17
R—tF+-A=+—HBZ2AFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—R -t 11} B &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHExT FHET
Financial assets TREE
Held for trading-listed equity HIEEBE—-LtW
securities &N 565 - - 565
Contingent consideration receivables [ Y sk SA (B - - 520 520
Fair value hierarchy as at 31/12/16
R—AEF+_A=T—HZAFEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—R F_K B ABET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET FHET
Financial assets SEEE
Held for trading-listed equity HIEEE—-Ltm
securities %N 7,952 - - 7,952
The fair value of financial derivative is determined using ERMOTETAENATENFEA-_XEERE
binomial tree model and the inputs used in the fair value B AR AT ERTEANEASE RS
measurement are volatility and discount rate. K ABRIR R o
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR SHEENESRHBEZE—PNE &
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers R EEE AL EAE EEASRELE
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial == —RF |

liabilities (2016: Nil).
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

34

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from 2014.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
mainly includes other borrowings and convertible notes, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

At annual general meeting of the Company held on 23 May
2011, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) and the share option scheme
adopted on 24 November 2001 (the “Old Scheme”) became
terminated therefrom. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 23 May 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
Upon termination of Old Scheme, no further Options under
the Old Scheme can be granted but the Options which
have been granted during the life of the Old Scheme shall
continue to be exerciseable in accordance with their terms
of issue and the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

33. HEMEERE RBER®

SRT R
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EtER R AR BRI R AR EE NG
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BREANER-

34. LA 32 3 & % p

EARBER-TE——FRA-F+ZHETZ
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34.

156

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the participants and for such other purposes as
the Board may approved from time to time.

Pursuant to Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
Options to any employee of the Group or any other persons
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group to subscribe for shares of the
Company at a price determined by the Board and shall be
no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the Option which must be
a business day, (i) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the Options; and (i) the nominal value of
a share on the date of offer of the Options.

An offer of Option shall remain open for acceptance by the
participant to whom an offer is made for a period from the
offer date to such date as the Board may determine and
specify in the offer letter (both days inclusive), provided
that no such offer shall be open for acceptance after the
10th anniversary from the adoption date of the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has
been terminated in accordance with the provisions hereof,
whichever is earlier. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is
payable on acceptance of the offer of an Option.

CHINA E-INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GROUP LTD. -
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue at as the date of approval
of the limit. The maximum number of shares issuable under
the Option to each eligible participant in the Scheme Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time.

Any grant of Options to a participant who is a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or their
respective associates must be approved by the independent
non-executive directors (excluding independent non-
executive director who is grantee). In addition, any Options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time and with an aggregate value (based on
the closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of
the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

34. IR (HEE HiM )

BRETE )
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The movements in the Options during the year ended 31

34. IR (HEE HiM )

SRSt 8l
BE-FT-LF+-AZt-ALFE 44

December 2017 are shown in the following table: TIEERE BEEN T -
Lapsed/
Exercise At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price 1 January during during during 31 December
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 201}}1 the year the year the year 201}}1
Z8-tE g8-tf
puERE RiAH TRERERS @&ﬁﬁ% -f-B  EpRE  EROE FARE T-AST-A
HK
BT
Directors
3
Yuan Wei 09/09/2015 09/09/2015-08/09/2025 028 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
RE “E-nENANE “2-TENANRE
“ECRENANE
1511212016 15/12/2016-14/12/2026 0311 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
“EAETCATRR ZEAETCATRAR
ZEINETCATIR
17/06/2017 17/05/2017-16/05/2027 0.285 - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
“E-tERATHR ZE-tERATHAZ
S 1 R
Zhang Jianxin 09/09/2015 (9/09/2015-08/09/2025 028 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
R “E-nENANE “2-RENANRE
“ZCRENANE
1511212016 15/12/2016-14/12/2026 0.311 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
“EAFTCATRR ZEAET-ATRAR
ZEINETCATIR
Wong Wai Wa (resigned 15/12/2016 15/12/2016-14/12/2026 0311 33,000,000 - - - 33,000,000
on 31/08/2017)
ThE “EEtCATRERE CE-RETCRTERRE
ZBIETZATRA
Zheng Zhijng 17/06/2017 17/05/2017-16/05/2027 0.285 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
D “T-tERRTHR ZE-tERATHAZ
ZEEERATRA
Huang Chung Hsing ~ 17/05/2017 17/05/2017-16/05/2027 0.285 - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
(resigned on
1112/2017)
ERENE-tE ZTHERATHR R ERATtAE
TZAT-BEE) e 1 R
Li Qunsheng 17/06/2017 17/05/2017-16/05/2027 0.285 - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
£ “E-tERRTHR ZE-tFRATHAZ
S 1 R
LiYaRu (resignedon  17/05/2017 17/05/2017-16/05/2027 0.285 - 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
04/12/2017)
FEE(CE-tF  E-HERATER ZEERATLRE
+ZARARET) ZECtERATAR
Subtotal 73,000,000 21,000,000 - - 94,000,000
gt
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

34. IR (HEE HiM )

Share Option Scheme (Continued) BIRERTEE)
Exercise At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price 1 January during during during 31 December
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 2017 the year the year the year 2017
i ]
E-tE Zg2-tF
BuERE RUAH TRERERE BRARE  -A-B FREE  FATR FREE ToAST-B
HKS
B
Others
Eft
In aggregate 28/08/2008 28/08/2008-27/08/2018 1.281 9,230,311 - - - 9,230,311
A% “EE\ENACHNE ZEE\ENR-TNRZE
ZF-ENAZTLR
In aggregate 09/07/2009 09/07/2009-08/07/2019 0652 14,936,322 - - - 14,936,322
gk ZETNELANR ZETNELANRE
ZE-NELANA
In aggregate 10/07/2014 10/07/2014-09/07/2024 0168 30,000,000 - (30,000,000 - -
sk “E-MELATH “2-MELATRE
“ZIELRANA
In aggregate 09/09/2015 (9/09/2015-08/09/2025 028 119,600,000 - (20,000,000 - 99,600,000
gk “Z-RENANR ZZ-RENANRE
“ECRENANA
In aggregate 1511212016 15/12/2016-14/12/2026 0311 330,000,000 - - - 330,000,000
skt ZEETZATRR ZEAFTCATRAZ
“EINETZATRE
In aggregate 17/06/2017 17/05/2017-16/05/2027 0.285 - 309,000,000 (57,000,000 - 252,000,000
Att “E-tFRATER ZE-FRATLAE
ZECtERATAA
503,766,633 309,000,000 (107,000,000 - 705,766,633
Exercisable at the end of the year 705,766,633
RERTTR
Weighted average exercise price HKS0.327%8 7w HK$0.9% 7 HKS0.25/ T - HK$032%T

TETETEE
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The movements in the share options of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are shown in the
following table:

34. IR (HEE HiM )

AR RESTEI ()

BE-Z-—AF+-A=T—ALEE 2
FIRRIE Y S HHNTE -

Exercise At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price 1 January during during during 31 December
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 2016 the year the year the year 2016
R R
ZE-RF ZE-RF
SEENE RiLAH AR ERS SRG®E  -B-B  FRERY  ERTR FAEE ToAST-B
HKS
BT
Directors
ES
Yuan Wei 09/09/2015 (9/09/2015-08/09/2025 028 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
RE ZZ-RENANR ZE-RENANRE
“E2CRFNANA
15/12/2016 15/12/2016-14/12/2026 0.311 - 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZEAETZATRR CEAETCATRRE
ZEINETCATIA
Zhang Jianxin 09/09/2015 (9/09/2015-08/09/2025 028 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
A ZZ-RENANR ZE-RENANRE
“ECRFAANA
15/12/2016 15/12/2016-14/12/2026 0.311 - 5000000 - - 5,000,000
“EETCATRER CEAETCATRRE
ZEINETZATIA
Wang Weihua 15/12/2016 15/12/2016-14/12/2026 0.311 - 33,000,000 - - 33,000,000
IARE “E-nEtZATRER ZE-EtCZRTRAZE
ZEINETCATIA
Subtotal 25,000,000 48,000,000 - - 73,000,000
/J\ﬂ-
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

34. IR (HEE HiM )

Share Option Scheme (Continued) BARRET )
Exercise At Granted Exercised Cancelled At
Name of Exercise period and price 1 January during during during 31 Decarmber
the participant Date of grant vesting period per share 2016 the year the year the year 2016
i S
IBF ZEE
BEERL RHAE TRERGEE ktE  -A-R EARE  EAAR ERdE toA=T-R
HKS
A
Others
Eft
In aggregate 28/08/2008 28/08/2008-27/08/2018 1281 9230311 - - - 9,230,311
B “EEN\ENAZTNR ZEEN\ENAZTNRE
ZE-ENAZ TR
In aggregate 09/07/2009 09/07/2009-08/07/2019 0852 14,936,322 - - - 14,936,322
sk “EENELANR “EENELANRE
“E-NELANA
In aggregate 10/07/2014 10/07/2014-09/07/2024 0168 30,000,000 - - - 30,000,000
sk “E-MELATH “2-MELATRE
ZECRELANA
In aggregate 09/09/2015 (9/09/2015-08/09/2025 028 289,000,000 - (169,400,000 - 119,600,000
sk “E-RENANE “2-RENANRE
“ECRENANA
In aggregate 15/12/2016 15/12/2016-14/12/2026 0311 - 282,000,000 - - 282,000,000
sk ZEETZATRR ZEAFTCATRAZ
ZECAETCATIA
368,166,633 330,000,000  (169,400,000) - 508,766,633
Exercisable at the end of the year 528,766,633
RERTTR
Weighted average exercise price HKS0.317%8 7 HKS0.318  HKS0.28 7t - HK$032%L

MEFIEE

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017 161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

@

(Continued)

On 17 May 2017, the Company granted 330,000,000
Options to Grantees under the Company’s Share
Option Scheme adopted on 23 May 2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
number of Options granted was 330,000,000
(2015: 314,000,000). Of which, 24,000,000 Options
were granted to the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) 20,000,000 Options were granted to the
employees of the Company (the “Employees”) and
286,000,000 Options were granted to the Company’s
external consultants (the “Consultants”). The fair value
of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme,
amounted to HK$28,905,000 of average HK$0.088
each. The fair values of the outstanding Options
were derived from Trinomial Option Pricing Model by
applying the following assumptions:

34. IR (HEE HiM )

BRETE )

@)

(%)

RZZE—+FRA+EH ARAIRER
T —FRA-+ZHERRERE
&1 | AR A H330,000,00017 B8 i%
1 o

REEZZT—tF+A=+—HIEF
[ & RIS IR 2R B 4330,000,00019
— T — A : 314,000,00017 )o H A
24,000,000 R ER TARAEE
(T E = )+ 20,000,000 B8 A% 4 35 F A
~alE &([ E 8 J) LA %286,000,00019
BRRER FAR B SNEREM(ER ).
BEBRESSMREERENATE
/428,905,000 7L §NERETFH A
0.0887 7T, o i AR AT B AR M ) A B LA
—EAHETEERGE  FTRAREL

T~

Expected length

of employment
and services
Date of grant Expected  (“Expected life”) Risk-free Expected
(dd.mm.yy) Grantee volatility (in years) interestrate  dividend yield
BHERR
FRAE AR
RiHAH (SR
(B-A-%) ERA BERE () EERERIE RERE®
17.5.2017 Directors 85.2% 10 1.42% AV .12
ZE—+EFRATLH F
Employees 85.2% 10 1.42% Nil 4
&
Consultants 85.2% 10 1.42% Nl 4=
B
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

@

(Continued)

The Group recognised the total expenses of
approximately HK$28,905,000 in relation to share
Options granted by the Company.

U

(i)

(i)

the expected volatilities for the Options granted
to Directors were using the average 1 years
volatility of the Company’s share price over
the year for the 24,000,000 Option granted to
Directors as at 17 May 2017.

the expected volatilities for the Options granted
to Employees were using the average 1 years
volatility of the Company’s share price over the
year for the 20,000,000 Options granted to
Employees as at 17 May 2017.

the expected volatilities for the Options granted
to Consultants were using the average 0.5 years
volatility of the Company’s share price over the
year for the 286,000,000 Options granted to
Consultants as at 17 May 2017.

the applicable risk free rates were generated
from Bloomberg based on the Hong Kong
Government 10 years Bond Yield matching the
assumed life of the Options.

the expected dividend yields were estimated
based on the historical dividend, which was
Zero.

34. IR (HEE HiM )

BRETE )

@)

(%)

AEBRREBARRIE L BRE 8
B 7 49528,905,000/8 7T ©

(i)

(i)

(iv)

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017

RTESNREBENTEHIMIETIA
HR_E—LFRAATLARTE
2524,000,00017 f& L1 2 F E 2 A
RANEFRE 2 R IRMETE °

=T B 00 B IR 69 78 B 08 T A
MR —_E—tFRATEAETE
£20,000,00017 ¥ ix 1 2 FF 2 2 7R
RENERE 2 FHERIBMEE °

P T B B B A 19 T8 B R 0@ T A
MR —_E—tFRATEARTHE
[£1286,000,00017 i I # 2 F 5 2
RAROSFRE 2 FIKIEME
Eo

i FA & R g 1) 2 T5 5 Bloombergif
BEBBITI0FHRESFERBEME
A - BRI 2 R HIAEEC G o

AR S R TR L B (T fhaT -
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

@

(Continued)

On 15 December 2016, the Company granted
330,000,000 Options to Grantees under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
number of Options granted was 330,000,000 (2016:
330,000,000). Of which, 21,000,000 Options were
granted to the director of the Company (the “Directors’),
148,000,000 Options were granted to the employees
of the Company (the “Employees”) and 134,000,000
Options were granted to the Company’s external
consultants (the “Consultants”). The fair value of
Options granted under the Share Option Scheme,
amounted to HK$34,575,000 of average HK$0.105
each. The fair values of the outstanding Options
were derived from Trinomial Option Pricing Model by
applying the following assumptions:

34. IR (HEE HiM )

BRETE )

@)

(%)

RZBE—R"F+-A+HB KRAIRE
NZE——FRA-+=BEAERR
& M AR AR H330,000,00017 f#
Pt o

REEZZT—tF+A=+—HIEF
£ &R IS IR 2L B 4330,000,00019
(== — /X4 1 330,000,00017 )o H -
21,000,000 ERER TARAEE
(TE %) 148,000,00017 B B& # 5 F A
~alE &([ E 8 J) BA %134,000,00019
BRRER T AR B SNEREM (B ).
BEBRESSMREERENATE
A34,575,0008 70 B ERETE A
0.105/ 7T o M ARTFE AR R A TE LA
—EAHETEERGE  FTRAREL
T~

Expected length

of employment
and services
Date of grant Expected  (“Expected life”) Risk-free Expected
(dd.mm.yy) Grantee volatility (in years) interestrate  dividend yield
BHERR
FRAER
RiHAH (SR
(B-A-%) ERA BERE () EERERIE RERE®
156.12.2016 Directors 82.4% 10 1.84% Nil 4
ZE—"ETZATRA %
Employees 82.4% 10 1.84% Nil 4
&
Consultants 82.4% 10 1.84% Nl 4=
BR
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

@

(Continued)

The Group recognised the total expenses of
approximately HK$34,575,000 in relation to share
Options granted by the Company.

U

(i)

(i)

the expected volatilities for the Options granted
to Directors were using the average 1 years
volatility of the Company’s share price over
the year for the 48,000,000 Option granted to
Directors as at 15 December 2016.

the expected volatilities for the Options granted
to Employees were using the average 1 years
volatility of the Company’s share price over the
year for the 148,000,000 Options granted to
Employees as at 15 December 2016.

the expected volatilities for the Options granted
to Consultants were using the average 1 years
volatility of the Company’s share price over the
year for the 134,000,000 Options granted to
Consultants as at 15 December 2016.

the applicable risk free rates were generated
from Bloomberg based on the Hong Kong
Government 10 years Bond Yield matching the
assumed life of the Options.

the expected dividend yields were estimated
based on the historical dividend, which was
Zero.

34. IR (HEE HiM )

BRETE )

@)

(%)

AEBRREBARRIE L BRE 8
B 7 49/534,575,00078 7T ©

(i)

(i)

(iv)
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RTESNREBENTEHIMIETIA
AR -_FE—RE+T_ATHART
£ 248,000,000 Bl EZ FEZ
ARBNERE 2 FHRBMETE

BT 8 e R TR R I8 T5 A
AR -_FE—RE+T_ATHART
1E 5148,000,00017 & Ik 1 2 F &
ZARRENERE 2 PR ENE

Eo

P T B B B A 19 T8 B R 0@ T A
MR ZE—R"F+_A+REET
/é8 [51134,000,00017 8 iz 1 ~ F /2
ZARENERE 2 FHRBME

Eo

i FA & R g 1) 2 T5 5 Bloombergif
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A - BRI 2 R HIAEEC G o

AR S R TR L B (T fhaT -

165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HE-_Z—+tF+-A=+—HILFE

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b)

The values of the Options are subject to the limitations
of the Trinomial Option Pricing Model and a number
of assumptions which are subjective and difficult to
ascertain. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The outstanding Options under the Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2017 was 705,766,633
(2016: 528,766,633) representing about 19.79%
(2016: 16%) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date.

If Options are forfeited before expiration or lapsed,
the related share-based payment will be transferred
directly to retained earnings/accumulated losses.

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 23 March, 2018, the group entered into an agreement

166

pursuant to which the seller Million Forever Limited agreed

to sell the 45% shares of Business Harbour Limited to

the original seller Happy Leisure Corp. which offered to

repurchase the shares at a consideration of HK$38 million

satisfied by cash.

34. IR (HEE HiM )

BT8R

b)) BEENEBEEX=ZFEAMETEENZ
PRI A K 2 T 8 I B A RE TE 2 IRAR AT
TE IBERRZEHAHAHEMGE
DEWN-Z

0 RZE—+tHF+=A=+—8"
BRESTEET ZHRITENRR
# A705,766,63310( = & — N F
528,766,63317 )  {E AR BN E B E 84T
BEADEI19.79%( —Z— /N5 : 16%)°

(o) feEBRERN DM R AT W - B RS
MR N RBEREREREREARN,
REtEiE -

35. HREHREH

RZE-—NF=ZAZ+=H AKBEFTLEE
% & ¥ It = FMillion Forever Limited[@ =
M R & JHappy Leisure Corp.ith & Business
Harbour Limited 2 45%% 15 + MHappy Leisure
Corp.[7 E LA E A R #38,000,0007% st (LAIR
SREEBERG
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36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation.

37

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

36. LB BUE

7R e

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

37. XA B M #EAR R T+

ETUBREBEEEY UWHEAFEZZS

ARFRBERZIBRARERIT -

2017 2016
—E—+F —TRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt TRT THET

Assets and liabilities BEREE

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE BERH 1,523 60
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIRE - -
1,523 60

Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b U ER R 77,129 71,541
Amounts due from subsidiaries [EUPH B A BIZE 216,968 193,744
Financial assets fair value through profit or loss ~ #EiBERIEA T EANEZ 2 REE 558 7,945
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRe&EEER 3,991 37,349
298,646 310,579
Total assets EEHRE 300,169 310,639
Current liabilities REEE

Trade and other payables Z 5L EMEMNRER 7,235 13,763
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHTB A RIFIA - -
Convertble notes MEEE - 9,396
7,235 23,159

Non-current liabilities e =L
Deterred tax liabilties EXFEAR 24,420 -
Convertible notes aREE 5,891 -
30,311 -
Total liabilities aEaE 37,546 23,159

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

37. KR M BARRR

(Continued)
2017 2016
—E-tF ZTRF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bizx TET THER
Net current assets RBEETFHE 291,411 287,420
Total assets less current liabilities BELERRBER 292,934 287,480
Net assets EEFE 262,623 287,480
Capital and reserves BARFHE
Share capital AR 26 356,590 330,498
Reserves fEE 27 (93,967) (43,018)
Total equity MR 262,623 287,480
Yuan Wei Zhang Jianxin
=E REH
Director Director
i EFE
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

38. B F] 2= 1%

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December ITEWMBARIR - E—+F+-_A=1+—H8B2Z
2017 are as follows: 3= N
Place of
incorporation/  Paid up share capital/ Proportion
registration/ registered capital interest held by
Name of subsidiary operations the Company Principal activities
AL/
MEBLRER /el HERK/ERER RARRAEELA TRER
Directly Indirectly
Ei Rk
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZB—tE ZT5F 2Bt T
China E-Learning Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1 100% 100% - - Provision of management services to
(Hong Kong) Limited &% group companies
PEBEHE () BT LRk MEERTREERRE
BRAT
New Beida Business BVI Ordinary shares US$10,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding
StudyNet Group Limited %EE?E&%
MABEREEARAT 10,000 L& BK RERR
Best Boom Enterprises BVI Ordinary shares US$10 - - 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
Best Boom Enterprises ~~ ABRZEE 10T LBk REER
Limited
Bejing Hua Tuo Education ~ PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Provision of occupational education,
Technology Company HK$40,000,000 industry certification course, skills
Limited (note @) training and education consultation
IRERSERRARAE HE 40,000,000 THBER REBESE 7%% i
(Mfta) ReE BB
Bejing Ke Xiong Education  PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100% Provision of occupational education,
Company Limited (note a) RMB5,000,000 industry certification course, skills
training and education consultation
GRREHERRAR  # AR5,000,0007 REBEHRNEDERE
=) AR RSN RBEHA
IN Medical (BVI) Group BVI QOrdinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited HK$13,677,288
EABZEVIEEARLT REBEXHES  13677,88ELERMR REAR
IN Medical Group Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
EARBEERARAR  BA HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 &Mk REHR

—Z—+t %54 - Annual Report 2017
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. M B A Az ¥ 15 )

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/  Paid up share capital/ Proportion
registration/ registered capital interest held by
Name of subsidiary operations the Company Principal activities
SRR/
WELRER i/ sens  BRRE/ERER RRRSHRELA TERK
Directly Indirectly
Ei 53
2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tf ZEF Bt T
Hunan IN Medical Network  PRC Registered capital - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Development RMB14,530,808
Company Limited (note a)
HREABEEENRAYE b AR 14,530,808 REAR
BRAAHr) AR
Distance Education College  PRC Registered capital - - 51% 51% Provision of distance learning program
of Beijing University of RMB900,000 in Chinese medicine
Chinese Medicine
tRPBERS q: ARB900,0007 &R REFBEERYERE
ERHEER
Note: MsE -
a.  These are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established in the a.  AERBKILZINTEEARE-
PRC.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting RERKERNEIMEE ZEMB AT ET
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. (B
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiary that have material
non-controlling interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned

38. B B 2= 1F @)

F2EMBARMAEAIERE R 218

TRETAEEFZEMBARMAEAIE

subsidiary of the Group that have material non-controlling feREZS 2 5615
interests:
Place of Proportion of
incorporation interests held by Profit allocated to Dividend paid to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary and non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
principal
place of
KEARER business FERERARRLS ARTHERER 2R ENFERERRS EHERE
AR
IREEHE 312t 3112116 3127 3112116 317 3112116 3127 3111216
—tf N —tf —NE —tF —NE —tf N
tZA=t-8 TZA=T-B tZA=t-B TZA=T-B t2A=t-R TZA=t-B ftZR=t-R TZA=1-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TR TEn TR TER Tén TERL
Distance Education College of ~ PRC 49% 49% 10,146 8,885 10,593 9,175 2,882 6,296
Beiing University of Chinese
Medicine
TRPRERZREHESR  HE

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the
Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling interest
is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BRAEEZ &HB QR MAEAERER
Z R TS E R B A0S o B B 75 A R
REEABEIPAT 28 -
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38. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

172

(Continued)

Distance Education College of Beijing University of Chinese

Medicine

38. B B 2= 1F @)

2017 2016

—E—tF ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT TAT

Current assets MBEE 13,339 12,312
Non-current assets FREEE 237 213
Current liabilities nBaE (19,459) (17,330)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - -
Revenue Wz 52,757 46,277
Other income H ez 49 53
Total expenses R (32,099) (28,196)
Profit for the year FREA 20,707 18,134
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEWBE 20,707 18,134
Net cash flow generated from operating activities &R E5 v R REFE 21,756 18,604
Net cash flow used in investing activities REFDMAZREREFHE (108) (18,679)
Net cash flow generated from financial activities MERBME REREFE (21,620) -
Net change in cash and equivalents RekReEEEESFHE 28 (75)
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